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Chairman’s |
Overview

Cue continues its growth trajectory with oil
production from Papua New Guinea and Indonesia
and expected oil production from New Zealand.

In late 2008 and in 2009 and 2010 we will add gas

production to our revenue mix.



This year we made a record net profit of A$11.7 million
versus a loss of A$27.6 million last year following the
write off of Jeruk expenditure, in the Sampang PSC.

We expect that this increased production will lead to
increased revenue, from A$38.4 million for financial
year 2008 to around A$54.6 million in financial year
2009 and A$75.]1 million in {inancial year 2010. These
projections assume, amongst other matters, that
Maudari oil production begins as anticipated, that other
production targets are achieved, and an oil price of
US$80 per barrel.

In Papua New Guineq, the SE Gobe cil field provided
ongoing cash flow to the company of A$8.3 million
(2007: A$7.8 million). The increased revenue reflects
the rise in world otl prices as we sold 76,031 barrels
(2007: 91,106 barrels} at an average price of US§101
per barrel {2007: US$68 per barrel). We expect that the
initiatives by major companies to develop PNG gas
for LNG export and for other uses, will in due course
enhance the valus of our substantial gas rescurces.

In Indonesia. cil production began from the Oyong
field at the end of September 2007 and generated
revenue of A$30 million for the final three quarters of
the financial year.

The Oyong gas develepment phase is well underway
ahead of expected first gas production in the third
quarter of 2008, We expect that Wortel gas field
development will be approved next year with gas
production beginning in the second half of 2010.

In New Zealand, the development of the Maari cil
field is substantially cormpleted with the platform
installed on the field and the FP50 anchored nearby.
We expect devslopment drilling to be completed in
the second quarter 2009 when the initial oi! production
rate is expected to reach 35,000 barrels of oil per day
with Cue's share reaching 1,750 barrels of oil per day.

QOur share of estimated oi! production aver calendar
vear 2009 is expected to generate revenue of

A$55 million. This projection depends on many
assumptions, including an oil price of US$80 per barrel
and achieving production rate targets amongst others.

In August 2008, we announced a farmin to a new
exploration permit in the Taranald Basin.

In Australia, Cue participates in seven exploration
permits, two in the Bass Basin adjacent to the
producing Yolla field and five on the Northwest Shelf
near the giant Rankin Trend gas fields.

Cue has farmed out an interest in o defined area of
one of the Bass Basin permits to Beach Petroleum
Limited, in return for Beach funding the drilling of an
exploration well in fourth quarter 2008.

Cue has also farmed out three of the Northwest-
shelf permits to MEQ Australia Limited in return for
acquisition of ssismic and the option to drill a well in
each permit. MEO has ta date committed to drill an
exploration waell in one of the permits in the fourth
quarter of 2008.

General

Your company has a broad and well balanced
portfolio of exploration and production areas and is
well placed to grow indigenously. In the longer term,
we expect that growth will be driven by our significant
volumes of natural gos.

Howaever, we continue to evaluate new exploration
areas, as well as acquisition opportunities that arise
from time to time.

Our focus in all of these activities is to enhance
sharehclder value.

Finally, 1 thank all of our staff for their continuing hard
work and dedication to the company.

Richard Tweedie

Chairman

30th September 2008
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Chief
Executive"
Officer's -
Review

In Papua New Guinea oil production continued from
the SE Gobe field, and the Cobra -1 exploration well
began drilling. In [ndonesia, ¢il production began from
the Cyong tield and the gas phase development of the
field began. In New Zecland development of the Maari
oil field progressed substantially and we farmed into

a new exploration permit. In Australia we acquired
seismic in some of our exploration permits, were
awarded a new exploration permit, and successfully
farmed out in several other exploration permits.

On the following pages I go into further detail about cur
ventures and projects throughout Australasia.
Please read on.

%

L]
Robert |. Coppin
Chief Executive Officer




Cue's share of oil production from the SE Gobe field for
the financial year was 76,031 barrels (2007: 91,106). The
oil production rate for the calendar year to the end of
June 2008 averaged 5,700 barrels of oil per day with Cuse'’s
share being 187 barrels of oil per day. The oil production
rate declined, but at a slower rate than predicted.

Qil production from the field is currently expected to
continue to around 2014.

Qil Search, the operator, has estimated field oil reserves
at 31 December 2007 to be;

Million Barrels of Oil (Gross)

Cumulative Hemaining

Production to be

Ultimate to produced

Recovery 31 Dec 2007 {Cue Share}

Proved (IP)  41.669) 36946 4.723(0.155)°
Proved + ! | i
. Probable (2P), 43519 36.946 6.573(0.216)

"Proved, '

| Probable & '; ‘ |
. Possible (3P) 45,609 36.946  B8.663 (0.285);

These reserves are consistent with SPE guidelines and
definitions.



The gross recoverable contingent gas resource
volumes have been independently reassessed and
are now estimated to be 178 billion cubic feet.

An estimated additional 1.5 million barrels of oil
could be ultimately recovered from the field if an
LNG project proceeds, thus allowing extension of
the field life to 2025.

Exploration

The Cobra -1 exploration well in PPL190 began
drilling in January 2008, Drilling difficulties were
experienced in the near surface hole leading to
the well being respudded as Cobra -1A. The
primary objective lagifu sandstone was found to
contain water. However, the sacondary objective
Hedinia sandstone contained an approximately
34 metre hydrecarbon column. Mechanical
difficulties and very significant lateral variation
in Hedinia sand thickness required the drilling cf
three sidetracks at reservoir level before the well
could be successfully flow tested and suspended
as a gas and condensate discovery.

Papua New Guinea Location Map
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Gas

An infill 2D seismic survey was acquired over the Kimu
gas field early in the year. Subsequent interpretation
of the new and existing data, and remapping of the
field, resulted in a reduction in potentially recoverable
natural gas volumes in the drilled southern fault block
of the field o approximately 270 billion cubic feet (2P
equivalent), Cue share approximately 30 billion cubic
feet. Additional gas potential remains in the undrilled
northern fault block. The Retention License over the
field was renewed subsequent to year end.

Preparations were made to drill the Barikewa -3
appraisal well, however the well was delayed pending
receipt of the renewa! of the Retention License. The
Retention License has since been renewed and the
well is likely to be drilled later in 2009 when a rig
becomes available.

During the vear, ExxonMokil began FEED for a liquefied
natural gas development based on the Hides, Angore,
Juha, Kutubu and Gobe Main fields.

Qil Search also announced that it will continue 1o pursue
ways to commercialize other non LNG project gas.

Cue believes that these initiatives increase the likelihood
of its interests in the Barikewa and Kimu gas fields and
in the SE Gobe fisld gas cap being commercialized.

South East Gobe Field - Papua New Guinea
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Chiel Executive Olficer's Review Continued

Indonesia

Production

Qil production began from the Oyong field in
September 2007, and in the June 2008 quarter
averaged approximately 6,700 barrels of oil per
day, as expected. At 30 June 2008, two million
barrels of oil had been produced. Cue's share of
oil production for the year was 257,211 barrels.
The field is expected to produce until around 2013.




Scntos Limited, the operator for the field, estimated gross cil and gas reserves as at 31 December 2007 to be;

Qil (million bbl) Gas (BCF} (1)
1P 2P ap 1P 2P r
|
| In Place Volumes | 39 55 75 130 i 144 ’ 159,
| !
| Ultimate Recovery I 3 6 10, 82 i 100 108
! | t
' Cumulative Production to 31 Dec ‘07 , 07 07 07, | . .
I ]
' Developed J 2.3 5.4 9.3 -L - -
IRemaining Reserves L‘ Vs -t T e S ! - - -7 {
!ras at 31 Dec ‘07 i {Cue Share) (0.35}. 0.7 (1.2 L - " -
- T T T - T r N o
: (Undeveloped @) | 1o J{ T D A
| {Cue Share) . - - - (1 (14) (154

(1) For gus, estimates of in-place and recoverable volumes include both iree gas and solution gas, and recoverable volume

estimates are shown as "Sales Gas” figuras.

{(2) Gas reserves are categorized as "undevelaped” pending insialiation & completion of the Phase 2 facilities.

These reserves are consistent with SPE guidelines and definitions.

Development

The gas development phase for the field progressed
during the year. Gas pipeline line pipe was
purchased and coated and construction of facilities
begun at Grati in East Java where the entire gas from
the field will be sold to PT. Indonesia Power under the
terms of an existing Gas Sales Agreement.

First gas production is now expected in the third
quarter of 2008,

Wortel - Interpretation of the new infill 2D seismic data
indicated that a Wortel -3 appraisal well is unlikely to
be needed. FEED studies are expected to begin in the
first quarter of 2009, ahead of a development decision
in the second half of 2009.

Wortel is expected to be developed via a well head
platiorm and a seven kilometre pipeline to the Cyong
factiities. First gas production is expected in the fourth
quarter of 2010.

Wortel is currently assessed to contain recoverable
gas volumes of 60 - 100 — 130 billion cubic feet in low,
mid and high cases.

Jeruk — Possible development scenarios were
reviewed, but none were commercially viakle at this
ime on a rigked basis.

Exploration

Evaluation of the 2007 infill 2D seismic survey and the
remaining exploration potential of the contract area
continued during the year.

Sampang PSC - Indonesia
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Maari Qil Field

Substantial progress was achieved on the
development of the Maari oil field during the year.

At financial year end, the platform had been
installed and the FPSO anchored on the field and
preparations were underway for connection of the
flow lines and for development drilling using the
ENSCO 107 jack up drilling rig.

Qil production will begin and progressively
increase as the development wells are drilled with
full production expected to be achieved in second
quarter 2009.

P50 recoverable oil from the Mcki formation reservoir
is estimated to be 45-50 million barrels {Cue share
2.25-2.5 million barrels). Qil is present in shallower
M2A sands and oil and gas in the deep Mangahewa
formation. Only the Moki formation will be initially
produced. The M2ZA sands could provide upside
production in the future.
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Manaia

Manaia was discovered by the Maui -4 well in 1870.

A Manaia -1 appraisal well will be drilled at the end
of Maari development drilling in 2009. In a success
case, Munaia could be developed through the nearby
Maari facilities.

PEP 38494

In August 2008, Cue farmed into the PEP38484
exploration permit which Hes directly south of Maari
and Manaia. Cue will eamn « 20% interest by funding
30% of the cost of the Matariki -1 exploration well.
Matariki -1 will test a four way dip closure that has
the potential to contain approximately 100 million
barrels of recoverable oil. [t is expected that the well
will be drilled in the second half of 2009.

LOCATION - LEGEND MAARKMANAIA JV
NEW - |l OilField OMV  69% (Op)
ZEAAND® | B Gas Condensate Field Todd  16%
/7 [CICUE Pemil HIN  10%
L Prospects CUE 5%
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Chint Executive Olficer's Review Continued

Australia

Bass Basin

Cue has o 50% interest in, and operates two
exploration permits T/37P and T/38P in the Bass Basin
of Southern Australia. Cue has farmed out a defined
area of T/38P to Beach Petroleurn Limited who will
earn an 80% interest in the area by drilling the Spikey
Beach -1 exploration well in around November 2008.
Cue will retain 10% in the farmout area and a

50% interest in the remainder of T/38P.

In April 2008, Cue acquired a 3600 kilometre 2D
seismic survey in T/37P and the non farmout portion
of T/38P. The survey was designed {o provide modem
data over an area with sparse existing seismic
coverage. The data is being processed and will be
used to develop drillable prospects.

Carnarvon Basin

Cue has a participating interest in {ive contiguous
exploration permits in the Outer Rankin Area of the
Camarvon Basin, extending over 120 kilometres in
length. The most recently acquired permit WA-409-P,
in which Cue has a 50% interest and is the operator,
was granted on 30 April 2008.

In WA-389-F, 350 square kilometres of 3D seismic
were acquired in the permit as part of the Rose
3D seismic survey.



Bass Basin Permits - Australia
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In October 2007, Cue farmed out to MEQ Australia
Limited in permits WA-359-P, WA-360-P and WA-361-P.
MEQ is earning a 60% interest in these permits by
acquiring 2D seismic in WA-359-P and 3D seismic in
WA-360-P and WA-361-P and committing to drill one
exploration well in sach by | January 2009,

in late 2007, and early 2008, MEQ acquired 250
kilometres of 2D seismic in WA-359-F and 250 square
Klometres of 3D seismic in WA-360-P and WA-361-P.
MEO has also reprocessed approximately 600 square
kilometres of the existing Rosie 3D seismic survey.

In May 2008, MEQ irrevocably committed to drilling
the Zeus -1 exploration well in WA-361-P in around
October/ November 2008. Cue has retained a 15%
interest in the well and permit at no cost. Zeus -1

will test several seismic amplitude anomalies in the
Legendre Formation that MEQ interprets to potentially
be gas bearing sandstones that could contain large
volumes of gas. The well is located adjacent to the
large producing Perseus gas field.

Ashmore Cartier

Cue holds a 20% interest in the Retention Lexse over the
Cash-Maple gas field in the Timor Sea. The opercator,
Coogee Resources Limited, is planning to reprocess
that portion of the existing Onnia 3D seismic survey

that covers the field. Coogee continues to study ways
in which the field could be commerrialized through
developments such as floating LNG or methancl
production, or compressed natural gas transporiation.

Ashmore Cartier Permits - Australia
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Corporate
 |Governance
| Statement

The Directors of Cue Energy Resources Limited
recognize the need for high standards of corporate
governance and are focused on fullilling their
responsibilities individually and as a board to all

of the Company stakeholders. The board supports

the guidelines on the “Principtes of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations”
established by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.




Given the size and structure of the Company, the
nature of its business, the stage of its development
and the cost of strict and detailed compliance with all
of the recommendations the Company has adopted
some modified systems, procedures and practices
which it considers allow it to meet the principles of
good corporete governance.

The Company practices aim for consistency with
thoss of the guidelines and its recommendations.
The Company considers that its adopted practices
are appropriate to it in this regard. At the end of this
Corporate Governance Statement a table is included
detailing the recommendations with which the
Company does not strictly comply.

The following detail addresses the Company practices
in complying with the principles.

Principle 1: Laying Solid Foundations for
Management and Oversight

The role of the Board is to lead and oversee the
management and direction of the Company.

After appropriate consultation with executive
management, the board:

— defines and sets its business objectives. It
subsequently monitors performance and
achievements of the Company’s objectives;

— oversees the reporting on matters of compliance
with corporate policies and laws, takes
responsibility for risk management processes
and a review of executive management of the
Company;

— meonitors and approves financial performance
and budgets; and

— reports to shareholders.

Principle 2: Structuring the Board to
Add Value

Composition of the Board

The ASX Corporate Governance Council
recommends that compeosition of the board be
determined sc as to provide a Company with a broad
bass of industry, business, technical, administrative
and corporate skill and experience considerad
necessary to represent shareholders and fulfill the
business objectives of a Company.

The recommendations of best practice are that

a majerity of the Directors and in particular the
chairperson should be independent. An independent
Director is one who:

— does not hold an executive position;

— i3 not a substantial shareholder of the Company
or an officer or otherwise associated directly or
indirectly with a substantial shareholder of the
Company;

— has not within the last 3 years been employed
in an executive capacity by the Company or
another group member or been a Director after
ceasing to hold such employment;

— i3 not a principal of a professional adviser to the
Company or another group member;

— is not a significant supplier or customer of the
Company or anothar group member, or an officer
of, or otherwise associated directly or indirectly
with a significant supplier or customer;

— has no significant contractual relationship with
the Company or any other group member other
than as a Director of the Company; and

— isfree from any interest and any business
or other relationship which could or could
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere
with the Directors ability to act in the best
interests of the Company.

It is considered that a majority of independent
Directors is not the optimal composition to add value
to your Company. This is due to the size and nature
of the Company's business and risk profile of the
Company. Corporate Govemance practices are in
place to support competent and objective operation
of the board and to provide investor assurance in
relation to board decision making.



Nomination of Other Board Members

The board at least annually reviews its composition
to determine if additional core strengths are required
to be added to the board in light of the nature of the
Company businesses and its objectives. The board
does not believe that at this point in the Company's
development it is necessary o appoint additional
Directors.

Independent Advice

Each of the Directors are entitled 1o seek independent
advice at Company expense to assist them to carry
out their responsibilities.

Principle 3: Promotion of Ethical and
Responsible Decision-Making

Directors, officers, employees and consultanis to the
Company are required to observe high standards of
behaviour and business ethics in conducting business
on behalf of the Company and they are required to
maintain a reputation of integrity on the part of both
the Company and themssives. The Company does not
contract with or otherwise engage any person or party
where it considers integrity may be compromised.

Directors are required to disclose to the board actual
or potential conflicts of interest that may or might
reasonably be thought to exist between the interests
of the Directer or the interests of any other party in so
far as it affects the activities of the Company and to
act in accordance with the Corporations Act if conflict
cannot be removed or if it persists. That involves
taking no part in the decision making process or
discusstons where that conflict does arise.

Directors are required to make disclosure of any share
trading. The Company policy in relation 1o share
trading is that officers are prohibited to trade whilst in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information
concerning the Company. That is information which
a reasonable person would expect to have a material
affect on the price or value of the Company shares.
An officer must discuss the proposal to acquire or sell
shares with the chairman prior to deing so to ensure
that there is no price sensitive information of which
that officer might not be aware. The undertaking

of any trading in shares must be notified to the
Company secretary who makes disclosurs to ASX.

Principle 4: Safe Guarding Integrity in
Financial Reporting

An Audit Committee has been established.

The committee consists of the following:
E.G. Albers (Chairman)

L.Musca

R.G. Tweadie

The main respensibilities of the Audit Commitiee are to;

* review the annual financial statements with
the Chief Executive Cfficer, the Chief Financial
Officer and the external auditors and make
appropriate recommendations to the Board;

* review all regular financial reports to be made
to the public prior 1o their release and make
appreprigie recommendations to the Board;

&  monitor compliance with statutory and
Australian and Port Moresby Stock Exchanges
requirements for financial reporting;

review reports from management and external
auditors on any significant proposed regulatory,
accounting or reporing issues, to assess the
potential impact on the Company’s financial
reporting process.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Ofticer are required to state in writing that the
Company's Financial Reports present a true and
fair view in all material respects of the Company's
financial condition and operational results in
accordance with relevant accounting standards.

The committee is also charged with the responsibilities
of recommending 1o the Board the appointment,
removal and remuneration of the external auditers
and reviewing the terms of their engagement and the
scope and quality of the audit.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors,
including a breakdown of fees of non audit services, is
provided in the notes to the financial statements. It is
the policy of the external auditers to provide an annual
declaration of their independence fo the Board.

Each board member has access to the external quditers
and the auditor has access to each board member.



Principle 5: Making Timely and Balanced
Disclosure

The Public Officer A.M. Knox, has been nominated
as the person responsible for communications with
the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX). This role
includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with
the continuous disclosure requirement in the ASX
Listing Rules and overseeing and co-coordinating
information disclosure to the ASX, analysts, brokers,
shareholders, the media and the public.

Al material information concemning the Company,
including its financial situation, performance,
ownership and governance are posted on the
Company web site to ensure all investors have equal
and timely access.

Principle 6: Respecting the Rights of
Shareholders

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure
that its shareholders are informed of all major
developments affecting the Company.

All shareholders, who so elact, receive a copy of the
Company's annucd report and both the annual and half
yearly reports are posted on the Company’s web site.

Quarterly reporis are prepared in accordance with
ASX listing rules. A copy is posted on the Company’s
web site.

Regular updates on cperations are made via ASX
releases.

Information on the Company is posted on the
Company's wabsite. When analysts are briefed on
aspects of the Company’s operation, the material used
in the presentation is released to the ASX and posted
on the Company’s website.

The Company upgraded its website during the past
year. The website includes the option for sharsholders
to contact the Company for direct email updates of
Company matters.

The external auditor is requested to attend the
annual general meeting and be available to answer
shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit
and the preparation and content of the audit report.

Principle 7: Recognising and Managing Risk

A key eloement of the policies and procedures is risk
management. The policies cover the Company's day-
to-day internal operations.

Three key risks for the Company are exploration
success; and oil and gas prices and markets.

The issue with exploration is one of balancing the
potential rewards with the cost of information and

the cost of drilling a dry hole. The Company employs

a number of strategies to mitigate its risks including
farming out prospects which do not meet its risk profile,
and acquiring 3D seismic in order to better define
prospects. The Company utilises industry standard
software to evaluate prospect economics. Another way
in which the Company reduces its exploration risk is
by peer review of prospects both internally and by
co-vanturers.

The Company is subject to commodity price
fluctuation threugh the sale of crude oil denominated
in $US. The Company constantly monitors crude oil
price swaps and currency option contracts available
to manage its commedity price risk.

'The Board is responsible for approval of acquisition
and disposal of exploration and development
interests. The Board is also responsible for overseeing,
identification and development of strategies to
mitigate price risk, including hedging and also asset
protection and potential liabilites via insurance.

The Company has in place internal control processes,
and undertakes such modifications as are necessary
to ensure reasonable levels of control are maintained.

Authorisation of equity raisings, entering into

debt faciliies and major capital expenditure or
commitments require Board approval. All routine
operating expenditures are the responsibility of
management in accordance with programmes and
budgets approved by the Board.



The Cormpany currently has a staff of six, which does
not include an internal audit function. In relation to its
responsibilities the Board's consideration includes the
following:

* Review of internal controls and recommendations
of enhancements

* Monitoring of compliance with the Corporations
Act 2001, Australian Stock Exchange, Australian
Taxation Office and Australian Securities
Invesiments Commission requirements

s Improving the quality of the management and
accournting infermation

s Follow-up and rectification by management
of deficiencies or breakdown in controls or
procedures.

Principle 8: Encouraging Enhanced
Performance

The board regularly discusses and reviews its
performance. The chairperson also discusses with
each Director their requirements, performances and
aspecis of involvement in the Company. The Non-
Executive Directors discuss and evaluate the rele
fulfilled by management individually and together.
This is reviewed against the discussed and agreed
objectives of the Company and the effectiveness in
carrying out those objectives.

Each member of the board has committed to spending
sufficient time to enable them to carry out their

duties as a Directer of the Company. One third of the
Directors retire annually and are free to seek re-
election by shareholders.

Principle 9: Remunerate Fairly and
Responsibly

A Remuneration and Nomination Committee has been
established.

The committee consists of the following:
L. Musca (Chairman)
R.G. Tweedie

The Remuneration and Nomination Commitiee makes
recommendations to the full Board on remuneration
packages and other terms of employment and reviews
the composition of the Board having regard to the
Company's present and future needs.

Remuneration and other terms of employment are
reviewed annually by the committee having regard to
performance and relevant comparative information.
As well as a base salary, remuneration packages
include superannuation, termination entitlements,
fringe benefits and options.

Remuneration packages are set at levels that are
intended to attract and retain high calibre staff and
align the interest of the executives with those of the
Company shareholders.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is
determined by the Board within the maximum amount
approved by the sharehelders from time to time.

Further information on Directors’ and Executives’
remuneration is set out in the Directors’ Report.

Principle 10: Recegnising the Legitimate
Interests of Stakeholders

The Company recognises its responsibilities extend
beyond shareholders to clients, customers, consumers
and regulators. The Company is committed to
providing detail, accuracy in that detail and meeting
principles of equity and faimess in all of its dealings.



Table of Departures and Explanations
{from the Recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council)

Departura (from Recommendation) Explanation I
[21 | Notall of the Directors satisty the test of independence. Moat Given the nature and size of the Company, i
Directors have substantial shareholdings in the Company. its business interests and the stage of
development, the board is of the view that ‘
there is a broad mix of skills required and that
' given their experience each of the Directors
| are aware of and capable of acting in an
' ‘ independent manner and in the best interests
: : , of the sharshelders. I
2.2 ' The Chairman whilst a Non-Executive Director has a substantial | The board considers that the chairman is ‘
. | associated sharsholding in the Compeany and does therefore not | capable of acting independently and is ‘
| , meet the test of independence. | sufficiently experienced to {ulfil that role. I
(3. : No formal code of conduct has been established as to practices | It is not considered that a code of conduct !
l i necessary to maintain confidence in the Company integrity or us | or reporting guide is yet necessary. The *
i | to reporting and investigating unethical practices. principles are followed. [
14.3 ' The majority of members of the qudit committee are not The board considers that each of the members :
' independent diractors, as defined. are aware of and capable of acting in an
independent manner and in the best interests |
) of the shareholders. ‘
5.1 No written policy and procedure exists to ensure that compliance | There are only two senior Executives of the 1
with ASX Listing Rules disclosure requirements are met at senjior l Company and the board doas not consider
management level. that a written policy is at this time required.
t It will be reviewed as the activities of the ;
' } | Company increase. |
61 'The Company has no formally designed or disclosed . The board is conscious of the need to I
. communication strategy with shareholders. ' continually keep shareholders and markets !
advised. The procedures adopted within the
| , Company, although not written, are weighted ‘
| L , towards informing shareholders and markets. |
17.] ! There has been no written implementation of palicy on risk ' Given the nature and size of the Company, its ‘
yand | oversight and management or for senior management to make | business interests and the invelvement of all
17.2 | statements 1o the board concerning those matters. Directors whe all have business management
F | skills, it is not considered necessary to }
t I establish this practice at this time. |
‘g1 | There has been no formal disclosure of the process for | Given the size of the Company and the
| | performance evaluation of the board, committees, individual i involvement of all three Directors a policy
' Directors and key Executives. has not to date been required. The Directors
I . _ continually monitor and discuss perfermance.
.10 There has been no disclosure of the code of conduct to deat _The business practices adapted by the board
. with compliance for legal or other obligations {o legitimate , recognise this principle but no formal code
 stakeholders. . has been established.
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Annual
Report of
Directors

Your Directors present their report on the
Company and its controlled entities for the

financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Directors

The names of Directors of the Company in office
during the year and up to the date of this repert were:

Richard G. Tweedie

Leon Musca

E. Geoffrey Albers

Lloyd Taylor (resigned 6 August 2007)

Company Secretary
Andrew Knox




Principal Activities
The principal activities of the group is petroleum
exploration, development and production. There has

been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year.

Cus Energy Resources Limited ('Cue') is listed on the
Australian Stock Exchange and the Port Moresby
Stock Exchange. The Company has an American
Depositary Receipt (ADR} program sponsored by the
Bank of New York.

Principal Place of Business
Level 21, 114 William Street
Melbourne 3000 Australia
Registered Office

Level 21, 114 William Street
Melboume 3000 Australia

Dividends

No dividends were paid to members during the
financial year.

Changes in State of Affairs

During the finaneial year, there was no significant
change in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity.

2007/2008 Results

Consoclidated entity revenue for the year ended 30
June 2008 was $38.845 M (2007: $9.665M).

Consolidated entity expernses totalled $23.301M (2007:
$35.768M) including production and amortisation
expenses.

The operating profit before income tax expense
for the year was $15.544M (2007: loss ($26.099M)).
Consolidated entity tax expenss for the year was
$3.825M (2007: $1.524M). Consolidated entity profit/
(loss) after income tax expense was $11.719M (2007

The Cobru -1 exploration well commenced drilling in
PPL190. Subsequent to the end of the financial year
the well was suspended as a gas and condensate
discovery.

Indonesia

The oil development phase of the Oyong field was
completed and oil production began in September
2007. Cue's net share of oil production from the
Ovony field for the year was 257,211 barrels. The gas
development phase began during the year and was
continuing at year end.

New Zealand

The Maari oil field development continued during the
year. The platform was installed on the field and the
FPSO anchered in place, Preparations were made for
flow line connection and for development drilling.

Australia

During the year Cuse farmed out to MEQ Australia Pty
Ltd (MEO) in WA-359-P, WA-360-P end WA-381-P. MEO
subsequently acquired 250 klometres of new 2D seismic
daia in WA-353-P and 250 square kilometres of 3D
seismic data in WA-360-P and WA-361-P. At the end of
the year, MEQ irmevocably committed to drilling the Zeus
-1 well in WA-361-P. Cue has elected to not contribute to
the well and has reduced its interest io 15%.

Cue was awarded WA-409-P (Cue 50% and operator).
WA-409-P is adjacent to Cue's existing permits WA-
389-P and WA-359-P.

In March and April 2008, Cue acquired a 3600
kilometres 2D seismic survey in Bass Basin permits
T/37P and T/38F.

During the year, Cue farmed out to Beach Petroleum
Limited in a defined portion of T/38P in retum for
Beach drilling the Spikey Beach -1 well.

Year ended' Year ended’

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
T

($27.623M)). : Net Tangible Assets :

| Per Share — cents 88, 87
Review of Operations 'Production Volumes i

—_——————— - — - = + - -
Papua New Guinea wkﬁ) . _.remsl 91,108,

| Barrels (Oyong) \ 257,211 -

Cue's net share of oil production from the SE Gobe
field for the year was 76,031 barrels (2007: 91,106
barrels). The field ol production rate for calendar year
2008 to June 30 was appreximately 5,700 barrels of oil
per day {Cue's net interest approximately 190 barrels
of oil per day).

A 2D seismic infill survey was undertaken over the
Kimu gas field.



Shareholders’ Equity & Capital Structure

Total Shareholders’ Equity as at 30 une 2008 was
$87.077 M (2007: $75.172M). At balance date Cue had
issued share capital of $141.9M (2007: $141.8M).

The total number of shares on issue at 30 June 2008 was
628,239,007 (2007: 628,239,007).

Options and Cther Rights of Conversion
Options

As at 30 June 2008 and at the date of this report, the
following options were outstanding:

Unlisted

4,100,000 uniisted options to employees over fully paid
ordinary shares. Options are exercisable as follows:

Numberof  Exercise Price }
Options (cents) Expiry Date

T lwogol sl auoeno
ST n, oz
[ Lol as| T o)
1,033,3331r 25, 19/04/12

During the year and up to the date of this repori, the
following employee options either expired cor lapsed:

Number of Exercise X

Options , Price (cents) Lapsed" Expired |
150,000, 3, 500000 1000000
. 000, x| Zoxo
250000 25 200000 -
250,000, 25, 250000] Ny

Cptions granted to an employee in prior finemeial years
who ceased employment with the company during the

year causing the options to lapse.
Shares Rights Granted

During the year and up to the date of this report, rights
to 625,000 ordinary shares were granted to executives
and employees. The shares have not been issued and
will not vest until 01/01/10 based on the respective
employees continued tenure of employment. Details of
share rights granted are as follows:

Options Granted

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the following
options were issued:

Number .
' of shares | Exercise Expiry
Issuing under Classof Priceof Dateof
Entity option, Shares; Option Options
' Cue | ! I }
| Energy ‘
' Resources } |
‘Limited | 1,000,000, Ordinary| 35cents, 01/06/2010

Other than those disclosed above, there were no other
rights of conversion and no further options have been
issued since the end of the financial year. During the
pericd, no options were converted to ordinary shares.
Since the end of the financial year, no options have
been converted to ordinary shares.

Environmental Requlation and Performance

The Group holds participating interests in a number of
exploration and production titles as detailed in Notes 13
and 15 {o the financial statements. The various authorities
granting such licences require the holder to comply with
the directions and terms of the grant of the licence.

The Group aims to ensure that the highest standard of
environmental care is achieved. The Board mainiains
the responsibility to ensure that the Group's environment
policies are adhered to and to ensure that the Group

is aware of and is in complionce with all relevant
environmentat legislation. There have been no
environmental breaches during the 2007 finandal year.

There have been no significant known breaches of the
Group' licence conditions during the 2008 financial year.

Future Developments

The particular infermation required by Section 29%(1) (e}
of the Corporations Act 2001 has been cmitted from the

report because the Directors believe that it would result
in unreasonable prejudice to the econormic entity.

Price of Risk

! Share at Free

No.of Exercise Grant Grant Date  Expiry Dividend Estimated Interest
Shares Price Date {cents) Date  Vesting Yield Voldtility Hate% Value$
' 625000! Nil} 16/04/08 25.5 | wa] 01/01/10] n/a! nla| nal| 17,893




Directors Meetings

The following table sets out the number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during the year and the
number of meetings attended by each Director.

Remuneration and ‘

Board Audit Committee Nomination Committee
Hold = Attended Held Attended Held Attended |
|Richard G.Tweedie 8 8 2 1 | N
ILeonMusca | 8 s 2] 2. 1 Y
2. Gootirey Albers | 8| 8| 2 2| N/A| /A |

Information on directors and key management personnel, including qualifications and experience is as follows:

Particulars of
Directors’ Interests !
in shares and options |

of Cue Energy
‘ . Special Resources Limited at
Directors: : Qualifications and Experience Responsibilitiea the date of this report
' Direct , Indirect
l RG. LLB Chairman of Board of Directors 2,656,972 157,519,429
Tweedio Director of Todd Petroleum Mining™ Mem.ber _Of Remun‘?mﬁon and Nil options
| (B2 years) Company Limited - Appoinied Nomination Committes i
| 04/09/1987 Member of Audit Committee ! |
|
! Director of Cue Energy Resources ! |
- .| Limited® - Appointed 16/07/2001 el N I
-E.G. Albers 1 LLB, FAICD Non-Executive Director T_ 8,078, 464 40,345,344 !
i N
(64 years) } Director of Octemex NL Chairman of Audit Commitiee Nil optlons I
i Appointed 02/10/1984 i | | !
| Director of Moby Gil & Gas Limited® | ! ‘ |
[
Appointed 12/10/2003 ‘ |
. Director of Bass Strait Oil Company | E !
' Limited® - Appointed 09/04/1981 !
' Director of Cue Energy Resources i , "
- | Limited® - Appointed 140812001 | S 4
| L. Musca LL B | Independent Non-Executive Director 12,555,444 Nil
; {65 years}) ‘ ' Barrister and Solicitor Chai'rmcEn of Remu.nemﬁon and Nil options 1
| Director of Cus Energy Resources ‘ Nomination Comﬂee ' ‘
1 ' Member of Audit Committee
! , Limited® - Appointed 17/11/1939 I . ;
Executivea: !
; R Coppin . B.Sc {Hons) " Chief Executive Officer 500,000 1,000,000,
? | 1500000 |
e L o oo g
' AM.Knox B.Com, CA, CPA, FAICD ' Chief Financial Officer 329.231 1,500,000,
‘ | Director of all subsidiaries Company Secretary 1,500,000 |
: i Public Officer . options,

(1) Refers to ASX listed directorship held ovear the pxist three years.
{ii) Refers to unlisted public company directorships held over the past three years.

No shares in subsidiary companies are held by the Directors and no remuneration or other benefits were paid or
are due and payable by subsidiary companies.

No options are held by the directors in ordinary shares of the company.




Remuneration Report {Audited)

This remuneration repon, which forms part of the
directors report, sets out informettion about the
remuneration of Cue Energy Limited's directors and
its senior management for the financial year ended 30
June 2008.

The prescribed details for each person covered by
this report are detailed below under the following
headings:

(A} Director and senieor management details

(B} Rermuneration policy

(C} Details of remuneration of directors and
executives

(D} Share based remuneration
(E} Relationship between remuneration policy and

company performance

(A} Director and senior management details

The following persons acted as directors of the
company during or since the end of the financial yeor:
R.G.Tweedie (Chairman)
E.G. Albers (Non Executive Director)
L. Musca (Non Executive Director)
L. Taylor (resigned 6 August 2007)
The term "senior management” is used in this
Remuneration Report to refer to the following persons:
R.. Coppin (Chief Executive Officer)

A.M. Knox (Chief Financial Officer/Company
Secretary)

The persons named above held their current paosition
for the whole of the financial year and since the end of
the financial year.

(B) Remuneration Policy

The Board's policy for remuneration of Executives and
Directors is detailed below:

Remuneration and other terms of employment are
reviewed annually by the committee having regard to
performance and relevant comparative information.
As well as a base salary, remuneration packages
include superannuation, termination entitiements,
fringe benefits and options.

Remuneration packages are set ot levels that are
intended to attract and retain high calibre staff and
align the interest of the executives with those of the
Company shareholders.

Remuneration of Nen-Executive Directors is
determined by the Board within the maximum armount
approved by the shareholders from time to time.

Remuneration of Directors and Executives is based
on recommendations by the Remuneration and
Nomination Commitiee and is not based directly

on the performance of the Company. The Board
considers a remuneration policy based on short-
term returns may not be beneficial to the long-term
creation of wealth by the Company o shareholders.
Howaever, the Board is conscious of its responsibility
for the performance of the Company. Directors

and Executives are encouraged to hold shares in
the Company to align their interests with those of
shareholders. Options issued have been valued
using the Black Scholes methed and are not based on
Company performance.

Remuneration packages contain the following key
elements:-

* Primary benefits - salary/fees

* Post-employment benefits including
superannution

* Equity including share options granted as
performance benuses or in lisu of services.

No remuneration or other benefits are paid by the
subsidiaries.



(C) Details of remuneration

Compensation of Key Management Personnel - 2008:

2008 Short-Term ~ Post Employment . Share-Based
' ‘ ' Total
Cash Non : Share
salary Cash monetary Super Rstirement Share | Cptiona/ Basad
and fees Bonus benefits** cnnuation bensfits Purchases*' Shares Helated Total
Rame 5, $ $ $ $: s $ % 5|
{ Non Executive | : ’ ‘ 1 | |
'Directors | i 1 i
[ S U SR S ]
RG.Tweedie | -l ;f oo sema| i B i__s&:m
EGabes | a0 [ i mwl T s
{L. Musca 29,167 ‘ 29,167 {58334
‘ Total 58,334 - - - - ‘ 116,668 - -, 175002
Executives | | S S I 4
R.J. Coppin 21g04l!  -) 40533 87EOOf - - 56.726| g.Z_ZL 400,800
AM. Knex 217,776 -l 62,717 22,860 - 29,986| 56,726 23.3] 390,085
| Total 433,817 -| 103250} 110,460 .| 29988 113.452] -1 790,965
| Total remuneration t
of Executives and  { ‘ '
|Directors 492,151, -| 103.250] 110,460 - 146,654 113452 -1 965987,
*  Shares purchased on market as an alternative to cash salary (refer Directors Saving Plan below).
Non performance based salary sacrifice banefits, including motor vehicle expenses.
No remuneration was paid to L. Taylor during the year (Nil: 2007)
Compensation of Key Management Personnel - 2007:
2007 Short-Term " Post Employment Share-Based :
' Total !
Cash Non Shoars !
salary Cash monetay Super- Retirement Share  Options/ Based .
and fees Bonus benefita** . cnnuation benefits Purchases* Shares  Related Total -
Nams s $ s s $ $ $ % s
 Non Executiva ' i ! i ! ' ‘
&eﬂq -4 [ i + - T - e—- + - +— — —L - B - 1:
R.G. Tweedie 6,250 . - - - 43750! - - 50,000
—_— s — —— H P - - ——T o ey
'E.G. Albers 25,000 - - - - 25,000 - - 50000
- + — =+ + - 1‘ - - - - = e e e . [
1 K. Hoolihan 21,909 ' ' ' ‘ 21,895' 43,804
- e —— + T + + S me— k- P
i L. Musca 25,000 - - - - 25,000 - - 50000
| Total . 78,159! - - . - 115645 . -1 193,804
|Executives .| A b .
RiCoppin 208000, - 50804, @600, . ] 867 191 43071,
i AM. Knox . 225299 -, 42173 23,760 - 1 19979, 83,667 212 394878,
' Total | 440,299, - 93077 111,360 WU legrs) 167,334, -, 832,049,
Total remuneretion : : ! | : ! i 1 ;
of Executives and ! ! . ; : I ‘ 1 !
| Directors ; 518,458 -, 93077 111,360} -, 135824, 167,334 - 1,025,853 4

Shares purchased on market as an alternative to cash salary.

s

Non performance based salary sacrifice benefits, including motor vehicle expenses.

A.M. Knox is a Director of all the subsidiaries and an Executive of the parent company.

R.J. Coppin is a Director of Cue Energy Holdings Lid and an Executive of the parent company.

No Directors, or Executives, were under contract at 30 June 2008,




(D) Share Based Remuneration

Options

Options are granted to the Executives as part of their remuneration as approved by the Directors, Options
granted during the year are not related to a specific performance condition. Options are granted to reward
key management personnel for their contribution to achieving specific milestones. No options were granted to
Directors as part of their respective remuneration. (2007 Nil)

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration. Options granted carry ro dividend or voting rights. No
amounts were paid for options issued during the year.

The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration in the previous, this or future reporting

periods are as follows:

The number of options over ordinary shares granted to Executives in the Company as remunerction during the

financial year is set out below:-

Balance at

. start of year remuneration | during year during year

Granted
during year as

Exercised Expired

Vested and |

exercisable
Balance at at end of
end of year yoar

i
; l
i

I Executives - 2008 ! L
I R S e T S TErT
J_R.]. Ceppin. + 1,500,000 _ 500,000 l - 500,000 150[1[](]04 '_71.166.662‘:
, A.M. Knox ! 1,500,000 500,000, - 500,000 1,500,000 1,166,667
Exercise  Fair Value of
Number of Price Options at Date '
Options Expiry date  Vesting date {cents) Grant Date  Exercisable
. Executives - 2008 ! : ‘ |
= - - ——-—[ - S -t s et - -+ S ctrm— = -
{RJ. Coppin 5000000 ﬂlﬂ_ﬁ@i_ Immediate; B 50_0%_ Immediate -
AM. Knex . 500,000 01/06/10, Immediate 3] 50000,  [mmediate ]
! ' Vested and |
‘ Granted exercisable |
Balance at  during yearas ' Exercised Expired Balance at at end of
starl of yacr  remuneration  during year during year  end of year year
(Executives-2007 | | ' [
'RJ. Coppin L . Lpoogod., 1,000,000, o - 5[2!9('.1an£)+ _1,500.0001______ 833334
- AM. Knox | 1,000,000 | 1,000,000 ; - 500,000, 1,500,000} 833,334
Exercise  Fuair Value of
Number of Price Options at Date :
Options Expiry date  Vesting date {cents)  Grant Date Exercisable |
| Executives - 2007 ! '
[Brectives-2007 (| .o ... | . ————
R.J. Coppin ! 500,000 01/08/10 [mmediate : 35 50,000 [mmediate |
—_— + e ————f - - [ B gt B s e
' 333334 19/04/12 Immediate ’ 20. 29,333 I[mmediate’
+ - —_— s = — - - _ — - - g e my
. 333,333, 19/04/12 | 19/04/09 . 25 274667 19/4/09°
" AM, Knox ? 500,000 0106100  [mmediate’ 35’ 50000  Immedidate
o + T s s e e - =t S S s — e
333,334 19/04/12 Immediate ' 20! 29,333 Immediate -
- + - — - -— ——+ S ————— . - -4 e il
. 333,333 19/04/12 . 19/04/08'' 225 27,667 19/04/08 .
t — - -+ ————y - — - ——— - - -1
; 333,333 19/04/12, 19/04/09 | 25, 27,667 19/4/09




Details of Options Granted as Remuneration 2008

!

| | 1 Price of | ! | ' | i
l i Share | | | ! { Value
Exercige - i at Grant ] . | | Risk Frea! Cents
No. of Price | Grtmt! Date Expiry | i Dividend ' Estimated | Interest per
- Options| (cents) Date, {(cents)' Date,  Vesting | Yield, Volatility)! Rate% Option
1,000000] 35; 16/0408]  255| 01/06/10] Immediate 0 27| 6] 0]
Details of Options Granted as Remuneration 2007 l
| 666668] 20| 230407 155] 190412] immediate] 0] 67| 7] 880
| 6666  225| 2304007 155] 19/0412] 190408 o 7| 7l 830
666,666 231 23/04/07 15.5) 19/04/12 19/04/09 0 67 7 8.30

The {air value of the options granted as part of remuneration is determined at grant date, and of the options
immediately vestad, the full value of the option is recognised in remuneration in the current year.

Options issued have been valued using the Black Scholes method and based upon the terms and conditions upon
which the instruments were granted, Estimated volatility is based on share price over the preceding 12 months.

No options were granted to Directors during the 30 June 2008 financial year.

Details of remuneration: Options

' ' Minimum Maximum
’ Financial total value  total value
yaars in of grant yet  of grant yet
Year Vested Forfeited which to vest tovest |
Name granted % : % options vest 3 $
{RJ. Coppin 2008 w0l - 0080 M| Nl
.4 ac07 _ 100 -\ 2008 Nil __Nil
- | w0 w0 A 2008 o
2007 Nil -| 2009 20932 20,932
[AM.Knox | 2008 100 I zuoej | |
. | aerp 100 : _ 2008  Nil| ~ Nil|
N I U 20088 M| Nl
| 2007 Nil - | 2009 | 20,932 20,932
No options were forfeited during the year.
Further detadls relating to options are set out below.
2008 ‘ A ; B ' c D E |
' Remuneration | Value atgrant Value ot exercise Value at lapse Total of
consisting of date : date date columns B-D
. Name options $ ‘ $ s 5 I
|R].Coppin _ |500000 |so00 |- ~Isgpoo
| AKnox 500,000 50,000 - - 1 50,000
2007 ‘ A i B ‘ C D E |
' Remuneration : Value at grant * Value at exercise  Value at lapse Total of i
. consisting of ! date date date columns B-D !
‘ Name options : $ | $ $ $ I
\RJ.Coppin | 1.000,000 83667 - eaeer
AXnox 1,000,000 83,667 - - 83,667




Share Rights Granted

Share rights are granted to the Executives as part of their remuneration as approved by the Directors. Share
rights granted during the year are not related to a specific performarnce condition. Share rights are granted to
record persorinel contribution to achieving specific milestones. Share rights are granted for no consideration.
Share rights granted carry no dividend or voting rights.

Ordinary shares granted have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the
Company. io participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and
moneys paid up on shares held. Ordinary shares entitle holders to one vote, either in person or by proxy ata
meeting of the Company.

The number of ordinary shares granted to Executives in the Company during the financial year are set out below:-

Details of shares granted during year as remuneration ' T

| , Price of ‘ ' Risk {

Share Free '

at Grant Interest ‘

No.of Exercise: Gramt Date Expiry Dividend . Estimated Rate Va]uei

Executives Shares Price Date  (cents) Date Vesting Yield Volatility % $;
|RJ.Coppin | 200000] _Nil| 16/04/08) 255 ! OLOVIB!  wal  nal  wal 572

| A.M. Knox % 200,000 m 16/04/08 | 25.5 n!ch UllUllH n/af nfuT nfa:[ 5,726.i

Details of remuneration: Share Rights

Share Rights Granted
" Fingneial  Minimum Maximum
years in total value of total value of
which share  grantyetto  gromtyetto l

Name Year granted Vested % Forfeited % rights vest vest § vest $
RJ.Coppin o008 _.} I _L 51,000
™ Knox ‘]L 2008 ; ] 2010 - 51,000

Refer to note 24 of the Financial Report for the calculation of the share right entitlements.

Further details relating to share rights are set out below.

2008 A j B C D _ E
Remuneration  Valueatgrant Value atexercise Value at Lapse Total of
consisting of date date ) date columns B-D |
Name rights $ $ $ 5
1RJ. Coppin - 200,000 L ]L 51000,
AM. Knox ) 200,000 51,000 -1 - 51,000,

There were no share right entitlements granted in 2007

No shares rights were granted as compensation in the previous year.



Directors Savings Flan

Pursuarit to the Directors Savings Plan, Directors are required to purchase through an appointed trustee, Cue
Energy Resources Limited shares on market for a minimum of 50% of respective Directors fees. No amounts were
paid for options issued during the year.

The number of ordinary shares purchased for the Directors as part of the Plan during the financial year are set
out below:-

Director Shareholdings
| Acquired ‘ ' Purchases |
during year Purchases as Part of
Balance af  on exerciseof  other than Directors Sales During  Balance at
. start of year options | remuneration Savings Plan the year Report Date

 Directors 2008 } o ! L _!___ N ”vﬁAL o ’ S

RG. Tweedie | 2,579,877 _I - 77,085 ; 2,656,972
e e e T e o
\EG. Albers 8033317, - _f cs7 o - B078AM
L Musca | 12516897 -1 ] 38,547, S 12555444,
|Directors 2007 | | I | o ! 7 ___i__ ___l__ ]
RG. Tweedie 2,243,361 - ) 335,516 B 2,579,877
|RG. Tweedie B 2579877 |
(EG. Albers | 682168, - M000000] nszse; - 8039817,
‘L Musca | 12306971 A B 200,926 T 12516897,

(E) Relationship between remuneration policy and company performance
Company Performance Review

The tables below set cut summary information about the company’s eamnings and movements in shareholder
wealth and key management remuneration for the five years to 30 June 2008.

" 30Tune 2008' 30 June 2007 30 June 2006’ 30 June 2005 30 June 2004

Profit Performance $000°s $000's $000's $000's $000°s*
‘Revenue | 38,845 ! 9,669 9,755 6,540 5,854
I v o -t et or o] Lt Taoal -—
| Net profit (loss) before 1ax A ES}E _ (26099)¢ 4588. 1,724 1479
lﬁa; profit (oss)aher x| 7] | @ew|  zler, 959 >
Key Management Remuneration 966 1,026 1 780 850 723
Share Performance ) 7 ‘
Share price at start of year {cents} | 17.5' 190 316 45 32!
e e e -t -t e St o —
i Share price at end of year (cenmts) | 225 175 19.0; ) gﬁ 8
' Dividends (cents) Jl( -1 - -T_ .J( .
p—— = - + - m— - e - - - -4 - —— -
" Basic eamings per share (cents) ! 19 (4.4) 041 0.29 027
— - - -— - ———- = -+ - - -+ - --—; St —t - -
Diluted earnings per share fcents) 19, @4, 04l LN 027,

* Converted from New Zealand dellars at an exchange rate of NZD/AUD $1.10.

The company’s remuneration policy seeks to reward staif members for their contribution to achieving significant
milestones and there is no direct link to the company share price or financial performance.

Auditor

In accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 the Company's auditor, PKF Chartered
Accountants, continues in office,



Non-qudit Services

The Company may decide to employ the aquditor on
assignments additional to iis statutory audit duties
where the audiior’s expertise and experience with the
Company are important.

The Board of Directors has considered the position and
is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is
compatible with the generd] standard of independence
for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.

The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-
audit services by the quditor as set cut below, did not
compromise the cqudit independence requirement of
the Corporations Act 2001, based on advice received
from the Audit Comrnittee, for the following reasons:

s All non-audit services have been reviewed
by the Board to ensure they do not impact the
imparticlity and objectivity of the aquditor.

* None of the services undermine the general
principle relating to the auditor independence
as set out in the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, including reviewing or auditing
the auditor’s own work, acting in a management
or a decision making capacity for the Company,
acting as advocate for the Company or jointly
sharing economic risk and reward.

Independence Declaration

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as
required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001, is set cut on page 32.

Audit Services 5 |
. Audit and review of financial reporis i 55,000 |
Non-Audit Services |
i Tax compliance services including i
| review of tax accounting, tax returns and I
. tax advice re tax losses i 18,500
| Total | 73,500]

Rounding off of amounts

The Company is a company of the kind referrad to

in ASIC Class Order 98/0100, dated 10 July 1998, and
in accordance with the Class Order amounts in the
directors’ report and the financial report are rounded
off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise
indicated.

Directors’ Insurance and Indemnification

During the financial year, the company paid a
premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors
of the company, the company secretary, and all
executive officers of the company and of any related
body corperate against a liability incurred asa

director, company secrelary or executive officer to
the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. In
accordance with commercial practice, the insurance
policy prohibits disclosure of the terms of the policy,
including the nature of the liability insured against
and the amount of the premium.

The company has not otherwise, during or since the
end of the financial year indemnified or agreed to
indemnify an officer or auditor of the company or any
related body corporate against o liability incurred as
an officer or quditor.

Information Used by Directors

There were no notices from Directors of the Group or
Parent Company requesting to use Company infor-
mation received in their caparcity as Directors which
would not otherwise have been available to them.

Events Subsequent to Balance Duate
Subsequent to the end of the financial year:

«  MEQ Australia Limited has irrevocably committed
to drill the Zeus -1 well in Cue’s North West Shelf
permit WA-361-F. Zeus -} well targeting a multi -
TCF potential gas prospect which is immedictely
adjacent to the established North West Shelf Gas
Project. The well is expected 1o be drilled in October
2008. Cue will be carried at no cost for a 15% interest.

* The Company has entered into a formin
arrangement with Todd Exploration Limited, a
company associated with Director, R.G. Tweedie,
to eamn a 20% interest in PEP38494 in the Taranaki
Basin, New Zealand. Cue will eam its interest in
the block by funding 30% of the costs of drilling the
Matariki -1 well. The farm in arrangements are on
commercial tertns.

Apart from these arrangements the Directors are not
aware of any matter or circumnstance since the end of
the financial year, not otherwise dedlt with in this report
or group financial statements that has significemtly or
may significantly affect the operations of Cue Energy
Resources Limited, the results of those operations or the
state of affairs of the Compemny or Group.

On behalf of the Board

R. Tweedie
Chairman
Dated in Melbourne on this 30th day of September

2008 and signed in accordance with a resolution
of the Directors.



Directors’
Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

(a) in the directors’ opinion the financial
statements and notes on pages 33 to 73, and the
remuneration disclosures that are contained in
the Remuneraticn report in the Directors' report,
set out on pages 24 to 29, are in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i} giving a true and fair view of the company's
and the consolidated entity’s financial
position as at 30 June 2008 and of their
performance, for the financial year ended on
that date: and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting
Standards (in¢cluding the Austratian
Accounting Interpretations) and Corporations
Regulations 2001.

b

="

the financial report also complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 1; and

{c) the remuneration disclosures that are contained
in the Remuneration report in the Directors’
report comply with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures,
the Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(d

—

there are reasonabte grounds to believe that
the company will be able to pay its debis as and
when they become due and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations by
the chief executive officer and chie! financial officer
for the financial year ended 30 June 2008, required by
Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001,

Signed in accordance with a resalution of the
directors.

W .

R. Tweedie

Chairmen

AL Coppin
Chief Executive Officer

Dated in Melbourne this 30th day of September 2008
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Independent
Declaration PKF

Charteted Accountants
& Business Advisers

30 September 2008

The Directors

Cue Energy Resources Limited
Lavel 21

114 Witliam Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

Dear Directors

Auditor's Independence Daclaration

As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of Cue Energy Resources Limited for the year
ended 30 June 2008, t declare that 1o the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

{a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requiremenis of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Cue Energy Resources Limited and the entities it controlled
during the year.

Yours sincerely
PKF

Dy

D J Garvey
Partner

Tek 63 39603 1700 | Fax: 613 9602 3870 | www.pkicom.au

PKF | ABN 83 236 985 726

Level 14, 140 William Street | Melbourne | Victoria 3000 | Australia
GPO Box 5088 | Melboune | Victoria 3001

PHF East Coast Practics 13 & mambaer of PXF Austra®s Limfied a netondl ssseciateon of and Q frrs sach wadng o
PXF, The Bt Comit Practon iy ofices i NSW, Victanta ang Bristany mmwm-mlderMmmdm
mapendent chariered BCCOUNENG Snd CONMENG frme

Listalty brveded by o scheerw under 5t [}
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Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2008

. i Consolidated Parent
; | j 2008 mcr; 2008 | 2007
Note ,  $000%s $000s ' $000%
 Revenue 3 38,845 5,669 1426 2,856
i Interest ¢ expense on financial liabilities not ot , :
,fair value through profit or loss. 369) N S
Lij[ﬂElq Expenses _ 4 (22,932} (35, 753)r (2,241) (32,680
) |
[T - - _ - e - _— [ P — —
, Operating profit/(loss) before income tax R VR ) R YY)
Flpw tax expense _ i GT (3, 825] {1.524) - -
- AU S I . } .
Net profit/{loss) attributable to members of f
the parent ) . 11,719 (27.623)| B15),  (20.804)]
' ] 1 i }
- + - + - 4 L +
] $, $! ‘
Basic eamnings/lloss} per share 2, ools, Q) 1
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share & o0 0044 -

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements.



Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2008

l Consolidated , Parent
. 2008 2007 ' 2008 2007
_Note ;  $000°a $000's . $000's $000°s
: S . | I X
gur_r?nthuetu o S . o . :
i c_:g_s_h and cash equwa.lents I 260) | 14,761 Cel04) }4_761 9 104
‘ Recewab!es [ 8 7,606 ! 934 66 ‘ 291
; Total Current As Assets . | 22,367 j 10,038 14,827 8,395 1
,,,,, S U K ——— I ! ‘
Non gu_rien!}lsseis o L | o
Hecewables N _Ein o -l - !,B_glj
Propeny plantand e cmd equ:pment i 8 ; !IZ+ 3. 2 ~ ]@i
Other fmanc!cl assels ) 1_0__ o _336 69| 54£ u 58‘3[!['31
| Deferred tox assets : 6 1218 A - -
Exploruton and evaluation expendxture o1 lﬁ3+ M+ 19762 - -,
. l_’rrpdugnoni properties 15 55,486 48,1191 - -
Total Non Current Assets _ I ] 101,238, 68.286 | 54,229’ 60,333
. Total Assets - | 123,605 ; 78.324 69,050 £9.728
, Current Liabilities . : | !
Payables . 18 | 5,529 935! 690 746,
Tax liabilities .6, 480, 1069, . .
Provisions _ .8, 119 280’ 119 280
Total Current Liabilities L 6128 2.284, 809 1026
T N . |
Non Current Liabilities R A, L, 4
Borrowings ) N B N ‘)
'Deferred terx licipiliiiei . _6 ' 16.61?4 2/ - -
Pm\nsxons . 18 962 826 193 23
“Total Non Current Liabilities o 30.400 868 189 25
Total Liabilities . ! 36.528 3,152 1.002 1051
Net Assets L §2.077 75,172 £8.048 68.677
) |

Equity .- . ]L : _ )
'Issued capital o7 1aLso, 141,800 141,900 141,800’
{ Reserves ) . ) 159 . 73 158 73 :
- Accumulated losses . ] (54,982) {66, 701) (74 ain (73,196
Total Equity | 87,077 75,172/ 68.048 68,677

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements.



Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2008

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share-based Available for

Issued Accumulated Payments Sale
Capltal Losses Reserve _  Reserve Total
Consolidated $000 | §000  §000 | $000 $000 |
 Balanca at 1 July 2007 _ L e, (66.701), ST 3
Secunty bctsedpcy'ments ___11”____ 1100 S 18{ R 1!8_4'
LAsset revaluation Elffe}'eﬂgai o N - L - { 68 _i_581.
Profiforthoperiod_ B S O RIS
[lssue ofshares : gl S S
, Costs of capital raising - x d : - al
' Balance at 30 fune 2008 N 141,900 (54.982) 18, 141/ 874077,
Parent . : : :
Balanceat 1July 2007 L. Mug0 (s -, .| enem,
. Secuﬂty—bctsed payments _+ - ) I_QO+ B - li - N E1
. és;et revaluation differences . -, - .. o Elir ) ) _581
,(Loss) for the period . . @®15) - | @®15)
I$9°<>f_s}1°£es i e o . . L g
!  Costs of capital raising - -, - -! -
Balance at 30 June 2008 141900 (74.011) 18 141, 68.048.
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share-based Available for
Issued Accumulated  Payments Sale '
Capital Losses Reserve Reserve Total )
Consolidated 5000 . §000 $'000 $000 §000
| Balance at 1 July 2006 L lalams] B3.078) - 73 10277 l
f 'Security-based paymems J‘, 3221 -1 -1 o _-+| )
Assel revaluation differences N - 7 -, "i (3[]_02+ (300)1
Prom for the period _ * -I (27.523)T - L - (27 623)
Isue of shares . * ! - - - -
_Costs of capital raising i ‘ - - - - -
' Balance at 30 June 2007 141,800 (86.701) - 73 75,172,
Parent )
Balance at 1 July 2006 . 141478 “3.37) - 373 98,479
. Security-based payments . 322+ -. -, - 322‘
Asset revaluation differences . -, -, -, (300) . (300y
(Loss} for the period N - (29.824) - 7 2]
' Issue of shares . -, - -, - -
Costs of capital raising ) - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2007 141,800 (73.136) . 73 68.677

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements.



ARE My wam §

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2008

i Consolidated Parent !

: , Note |  $000%s $000°s $000 ' $000%
Ccsh Flows From Operating Actig-_il!e! | el [ o . i

FRecenptslrom_c_us:uEgrf L I I 1< 7500 ;LA -

rmﬁfifﬁc_e’l’?d L lT _ . ..%0  _em @ 877{

rPcn(ments to employees and other suppllers . - s 302}T7 o B70a  (689) (131 1)4

Income toxpaid B .. @ 063)+ (.gsoy -, L

[Royaltles paid 4 {158} (135 - -
Net Cash Provided by (used in) |

' Operating activities | 26 23,215 2710 (309) (434)|

: e SR
Cdsh Flows From Inveshng glEt!vﬂe_s ol f— e _ L I
Refund of exploration expenditure ' I aLerf - } -1'
Pcryment.s for exploration expenditure I _ (l! 375) (25,044) - _ 7:; L

rPaymen: for office equipment - (30). ) ey G (89)*
Payments for production properry o _ (_17._92_8)+ o 894y o ) -

rProceeds on sale of investments + i -, 772 S ) 777211
 Loans to subsidiaries : L N j o tse

LRepaymem of loans from subsniu:mes i + - - 7.042 (343)
" Net Cash Provided by (uzed in) 5 ‘ '
Investing Activities } . | (29,333) (22,728) 7,012 {19,584)

SR A L . ;
Ccsh Flows From Financing Activities ) "A o . . ;
Proceeds from borrowing N 1 12,821 - - -
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities f 12,821 -] - -

: Sl o . 4

'Net Increase/{Decreass) in Cash and ‘ f :

Cash Equivalents N i o 6,703 - {20,018) _ 6,703 (20_,018)4
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmmng |
of the period_ ‘ l 9,104 29,903 9,104 29,903

. + - - —_— . - 1—— —_ —_—— - 4
Effect of exchange rctte chcmge on iorelgn '

- currency balances held at the beginning of ‘ ‘ :
the year ) N | (1,046) (781, {1,048) (781)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end ‘ j | ' |
of the Period | 280 14761 9,104 14761 9.104

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements.




Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Cue Energy Resources Limited is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The financial report was
authorised for issue by the Directors on the date the
Directors’ Declaration was signed.

a} Operations and principal activities
Operations comprise petroleum exploration,
development and production activiiies.

b) Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpess financial
report presented in Australian dollars which has been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations
adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board {"AASB") and the Corporations Act 2001.
International Financial Reporting Standards ("TFRSs")
form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards
adopted by the AASB. The financial reports of the
consolidated entity and the Company also comply
with [FRS and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all periods presented in
this report.

¢} Basis of preparation

The financial report has been prepared on a going
concern and the histerical cost basis except for shares
held in listed companies, which are recognised at
fair value.

Fair values means the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing partners in an arm’s length
transaction.

d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of a financial report in conformity
with Australian Accounting Standards requires
marncgement to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported ormounts of assets and ligbilities, income and
expenses. The estimartes and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors thet are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results mery differ from these estimartes.
These accounting policies have been consistently
applied by each entity in the consolidated entity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period

in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(i) Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets resulting from unused tax losses
herve been recognised on the basis that management

considers it is probable that future tax profits will be
available to utilise the unused tax losses.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’)

(ii} Share-hased payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity settled
transcctions with employees by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by
using the Black Scholes Model. The accounting
estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled
share-based payments would have no impact on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next annual reporting period but moy impact
expenses and equity (see note 24).

The Group measures the cost of cash-settled share-
based payments at fair value at the grant date using
the Black-Scholes formula for taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments
were granted.

{iii) Impairment Testing

Determining whether exploration expenditure and
production properties is impaired.

Production properties impairment testing requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate present value.

(iv) Useful Life of Production Property Assets

As detailed at Note 15 and Note | (o) "Production
Properties”, production properties are amortised ocn
a unit of production basis, with separate calculations
being made for each resource. Estimates of

reserve quantities are a critical estimate impacting
amortisation of production property assets.

(v) Estimates of reserve quantities

The estimated quantities of Proven and Probable
hydrocarbon reserves reported by the Company

are integral to the calculation: of depletion and
depreciation expenss and to assessments of possible
impairment of assets. Estimated reserve quantities
are based upen interpretations of geclogical and
geophysical models and assessments of the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of producing the
reserves. These assessments require assumptions

to be made regarding future development and
production costs, commaodity prices, exchange

rates and fiscal regimes. The estimates of reserves
may change from pericd to period as the economic
assumptions used to estimate the reserves can change
from period to period, and as additional geclogical
data is generated during the course of operations.
Reserves estimates are prepared in accordance with
the Company's policies and procedures for reserves
estimation which conform to guidelines prepared by
the Sociaty of Petroleum Engineers.

¢) Adoption of New and Revised Accounting
Standards

In the current year, the Company and Consolidated
Entity has adopted all the new and revised Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Austratian
Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the current
period.

The Group has also adopted the following standards
as listed below which enly impacted on the Group's
financial statements with respect to disclosure:

s AASBI0] "Presentation of Financial Statements
(revised Octobar 2006)"

« AASBE7 “Financial Instruments - Disclosures”



1. Summary of significant accounting policies {cont’}

f) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet effective

Australion Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been
adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2008.

These are outlined in the table below.

Application Application
, - dateof | Impact on Group date for
Reference Title ! Summary ! standard* | Financlal Report | Group* |
AASB 2007-3 | Amendments to ' Amending stondard fssued as g ' 1 January 2009 | AASB 8 is a disclosure | 1July 2009
i Australien consequence of AASB 8 Operating ' : standard so will have ne
, Accounting Standards ~ Segments. . | direct impact on the amounts
( arising from AASB 8 , included in the Group's \
; [AASB 5, AASBS&, 1 | financial statements. ltisnot |
. | AASB 107 AASB 118, | J | expected 1o have a significant
AASB 127, AASB 134, ‘impact on the segment I
AASBI36 & AASB 1023 |  disclosures made as currently
& AASB 1638] reported segments are aligned -
. e . o - 1 _._ | with management reports. f
. AASB 2007-6 I Amendments tc | Amending standard issued as a l 1 January 2009 l Adoption of the standard is ! 1 July 2009 I:
| AustralianAccounting  * consequence of AASB 123 (revised) h not expected to have any |
' Standards arising Borrowing Costs. ! significant impact on the '
| from AASB 123[AASB amounts included in the

"1, AASB 101, AASB !

107, AASB 111, AASB
1116 & AASB 138 and
: 15_[mer"premtioma P& 12 . .
AASB S Operating Segments This new standard will replace AASB 1 January 2009 ! Refer 1o AASB 2007-3 above 1 July 2009
- 114 Segment Reperting and adoption
of management approach 1o Segment |

Group’s Financial Statements.
1

| ' |
|
J

. - - : , Reparting ] S S . ' .
“AASB 123 Borrowing Costs AAZSB 123 praviously pennitted entities to "1 January 2009 ' Refer to AASB 2007-6 above 1 Juty 2009
{revised June ! choose betwesn expensing all borrowing
2007) costs and capitalising those that were

otiributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. The revised .
i version of AASB 23 requires borrowing | :
I costs 1o be capitalised if they are directly , '
" attriputable to the acquisition, construction or i

i production _c:i a qucﬂif_ylng asset. o . o
AASB 2008-1 Amendments to The amendment clarifies that vesting 1 January 2009 Not expected te impact onthe 1 January 2009
 AASB2"Shure Based  conditions are restricted to: ! , Group financial report.
[ ! Payments” - service conditions; and | '

' - Performance conditions only.
Other features of a share-based poayment
are not vesting conditions. This restriction
was not clearly stated in the pre-amended
, standards. 1
1 This means that dil other terms and ) i '
conditions are accounted for in the value of ’
the share or optien at grant date.
i also specifies that all cancellations,
whether by the entity or by other parties,
} should receive the same accounting
. \ treatment. !

" * - - + + -
AASB 20082 Amendmenisto AASB In instances where a puttable financlal ' 1 January 2009 Not expected to impact on the | January 2008
132 “Puttable Financial  instrument imposes an obligation on the Group financial report.
Instruments and entity to deliver to ancther party, a pro-rata
Chbligations arising on  share of net assets of the entity only on
, Liquidation.” , liquidation, the entity is permitted to classify :

the financial instrument as equity if the
. . instrument meets specﬁiﬁ requirements. . . .
AASB2008-3 Amendmenisto Consequential amendments to other | January 2009 Not expected to impact on the | January 2009
Australian Accounting  standards arising from AASB 39 (Revised) Group financial report.
Standards Arising from and AASB 127 (Amended).
- AASB 3and AASB 127 . .
'[AASBs 1,2,4,57, 10}, '
107, 112, 114, 116, 121,
128, 131,132, 133, 134,
136, 137, 138 & 139 and '
. ! Interpretations 9 & 1071,




1. Summeary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

; , Application Application
! : | dateof | Impact on Group date for
Reference Title . Summary , standard* ' Financial Report Group*
AASB123 | AASB2007-6 ! This revision eliminates the option to i 1 Janary 2009 | Not expected to impact on the 1 January 2009 '
i Borrowing |, Amendments to | expense borrowing costs on qualifying { Group financial repert.
Costs Australian Accounting | assets and requires that they be capitalised. | |
| (Revisad) Standards 1, 101, ' The transitional provision provided ' |
‘ 1107, 111, 116, 138and  ; allows for prospective application of this
Interpretations | & 12. | reviston from either application date or . f 1
. I adoption date if prior 1o | January 2009. The | 1‘ | '
| | Amending Standard eliminates reference : '
. i to the expensing option in various other ; !
! {;pronouncements J{ _ ] !
"AASBE 3 * AASB 127 Consohdated The AASB issued the revised AASB Jin Tl July 2009 ' Not expected to impact on the lT 1 July 2069 |
' Business + and Separate Financial | March 2008 for application by for-profit ' Group financial report
Combinetions Statements {Amended), | entities only. They have committed to address ' '
(Revised) - AASB 20083 ' the not-for-profit requirements prior to the ' .
! ! Amendments to AASBs I standard becoming mandatory on 1 July ! |
" arising from AASB3 ! 2009, Early adoption of these revisionsand |
.and AASB 127 i amendments are permitted. The revised
) » and amended standards incorporate many '
' ; : changes which will have a significant impact
| | on the profit and loss for entities entering into '
' i busmess combinations. . . . .
, AASB 101 * AASB 2007-3 | Th. rervised standard affects 1he presentu‘non 1 January 2009 AASE 101 is a disclosure "1 January 2009
‘ Presentatlon | Amendments to of changes in aquity and comprehensive i | standard so will have no ‘ .
of Finanelal  Australian Aecounting ' income. It does not change the recognition, ' direct {mpact on the amounts |
Sigtements  Standards & measurement or disclosure of specific included in the Group's
{Revisad Interpretations and | transactions and other events required financial statements, ;
! September | AASB 2007-10 Further | by other AASB standards however, it : !
' 2007 Amendments o AASBs ' is important 1o niote that the AASB has
arising from AASE 101  decided thet Australion issuers must make
use in financial reports of the descriptions-
Statement of Financial Performance I
and Pasition rather than Balance Sheet ;
and Income Statement and use the term
"financicl report” and not “financial
. , statement”. The Amending Standard updates | 3
| : - references in vcmous other pronouncemems R ‘ !
Interpretation The Limit on a Defined Concludes thm an entity shall determine " | January 2008 As the Group does not have 1 January 2008
14 AASB 119 Benefit Assat, Minimum the availability of a refund or a reduction in any Defined Benefit Assets
' Funding Requirements  future contributions in accordance with the ' the Interpretation will have no |
and their [nteraction. terms and conditions of the plan and any ' impact.
statutory requirements in the jurisdiction of
+ Lhe plcm + + -- + I
 Interpretation ' Agreemants for the Provides guidance on how to determme 1 January 2009 Not expected to impact onthe 1 January 2009
15 _ Construction of Real whather an agreement for the construction ' Group financial report,
Estate. of real estate is within the scope of AASBL1]
Construction Contracts or AASB 118 Revenue
and, accordingly, when revenue from the | \
. : ; construction should be recognised. ‘ ; ) : .
Interpretation Hedges of a Net Concludes that: | January 2009 Not expected to impact onthe | January 2009
16 g;:’smhgz:t in a Foreign o} the presentation currency does not create ' Group financial report.

' an exposure to which an entity may apply
hedge accounting. Consequently, a parent
entity may designate as a hedged risk only
tha foreign exchange differences arsing

: from a difference between its own functional

currericy and that of its foreign operation.

b} the hedging instrument(s) may be held by

any entity or entities within the group.

Thet on disposal of a hedged foreign
operation while [AS 39 must be applied

. to determine the amount that needs to be
reclassified to profit or loss from the foreign

currency translation reserve in respect of the
' hedging instrument, IAS 2] must be applied

| , in respect of the hedged item.




1. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

: Application Application ‘
date of Impact on Group date for
_ Reference | Title Summary standard®  Financlal Report Group*
' AASBI39 ' Amendments to ) The amendment clarifies how, the principles that 1 july 2009 [ Not expected 1o " July 2009 !
Financial AASB 139 “Financial ' determine whether o hedged risk or portion of cash impact on the Group
Instruments:  Instruments: flows is eligible for designation, should be applied financial report. .
{ Recognition , Recognition and | in particular situations. | ! ! !
i ,c:dnd Mecsurement ' The amendment addresses two particular situgtions: - 1 | '
easurement ) :
+ the designation of a che-sided risk in ¢ hedged item
. o ‘il‘ o ) ) ) "’:lhf;dt_as_igncﬁmdmc_rﬁoninpa_rigularsituaﬁg_ns ]It ) __f o "‘f ey
" AASB 2008-5 « Amendments to 1 The amendments are part of the Annual 1 January 2009 ' Not expected to + 1 January 2009 1
Australion Accounting ! Improvemenis Project and have ramifications acress ' impact on the Group :
Standards arising , the requirements of several AASB standards. financial repor. |
" from the Annudl | . i "
! Improvements Prcject ‘ | |
'[AASBS, 7,101,102, | ' !
107, 108, 110, 116, 118, ) |
119,120, 123, 127, 128, ‘ ‘
129, 131, 132, 134, 136, | |
'138, 139, 140, 148, 1023 ! i
Jelosab o L L : L e e e e .
AASB 20086 - Further Amendments to These are further amendments arising from the U1 Tuty 2009 Not expected to 1 July 2009
. Australian Accounting | Annual Improvements Project and specifically ) + impact on the Group :
! Standerds arising impact AASE] and AASBS. f | tinanedal repert.
from the Annual '
Improvements Project
) 1’[fU-'&_S_BlEu'-_U’\SB_S]. . o . . ] )
' AASB 20087 Amendments to . This Standard: "1 January 2009 Not expected to T | January 2009
Australian Accounting N . ) impact on the Group
Standards — Cost of a} amends AASE ] to allow first-time adopters, in their financial report,

an Investment in a
. Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate [AASB 1,
AASB 118, AASB 12],
) AASB 127 & AASB 136).
i i |

separate financal statements, to use a deemed cost
option for determining the cost of an investmentina
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate. The

deemed cost of such an investment can be either its:

i. iair value (determined in accordance with AASB
139 Financidl Instrurnents: Recognition and
Measurement) at the entity’s date of tremsition to
Australian-equivalents-to-IFRSs; ar

ii. previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.
A first-time adopter may choose either deemed cost
option to measure its investment in each subsidiary, !

jointly controlled entity or associate ther it elects to !
measure using a deemed cost;

b) removes from AASB 118 the requirement to deduct

dividends declared out of pre-acquisition profits

from the cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jeintly
controlled entity or associate. Therefore, all dividends
from a subsidiary, jeintly controlled entity or associcte
are recognised by the investor as income; '

 ¢) amends AASB 127 to require, in particular

circumstartces, a new parent entity established in
a group rearganisation to measure the cost of its
investment ¢t the cartying amount of the shore of
tha equity iterns shown in the soparate finandial
staternonts of the ariginal parent of the date of the
reorgariisation. The relevant circumstances include
that the recrganisation involves:

i. the new gxmrent abtadning control of the original
parent through an exchange of equity instrurments;

. no change to the group’s assets and liabilities; and

no change to the owners' absolute and relative
interests in the net assets; and amends AASB 136 to
include recognising a dividend from a subsidiary,
jointly controlied entity or associate, together with
other evidence, as an indication that the investment
in the subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate




1. Summaeary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

g) Principles of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the
assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Cue Energy
Resources Limited (“company” or “parent entity”) as at
30 June 2008 and the results of all subsidiaries for the
year then ended. Cue Energy Resources Limited and
its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial
report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally acccompanying a shareholding of more than
cne-half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceasss.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the.
Group. Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unredalised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of the impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
in the individual financial statements of Cue Energy
Resources Limited.

h) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer. Revenue is recognised
and measured at the fair value of the consideration
or contributions received, net of goods and service tax
("GST"), to the extent it is probable that the economic
benetits will flow {6 the Group and the revenue con
be reliably measured.

Sales revenue

Sales revenue is recognised on the basis of the
Group's interest in a producing field {“entittements”
method), when the physical product and associated
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the purchaser,
which is generally at the time of ship or truck loading,
or in certain instances the product entering the
pipeline.

Revenue earned under a preduction sharing contract
("PSC") is recognised on a net entitlements basis
according to the terms of the PSC.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When

a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the criginal
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interost
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Other income

Other incomae is recognised in the income statement
at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of GST, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer or when the service has been performed.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of a non-current
asset is included as other income at the date control
of the asset passes to the buyer. The gain or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal
and the net proceeds on disposal.

i) Borrowings

Borrowing costs which includes the costs of arranging
and obtaining financing, incurred for the acquisition
or construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

i) Exploration and evaluation project expenditure

Costs incurred during the exploration, evaluation and
development stages of specific areas of interest are
accumulated. Such expenditure comprises net direct
costs and an appropriate portion of related cverhead
expenditure, but does not include general overheads
or administrative expenditure not having a specific
nexus with a particular area of interest.

Expenditure is only carried forward as an asset
where it is expected to be fully recouped through

the successful development of the areq, or where
activities to date have not yet reached a stage to
allow adequate assessment regarding existence of
economically recoverable reserves, and active and
significant operations in relation to the area are
continuing. Ultimate recoupment of costs is dependent
on successful development and commercial
exploitation, or alternatively, sale of respective areas.

Costs are written off as soon as an crea has been
abandoned or considered to be non-commercial.

No amortisation is provided in respect of projects in
the exploration, evaluation and development stages
until they are reclassified as production properties.

Restoration costs recognised in respect of areas of
interest in the exploration and evaluation stage
are carried forward as exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure.




1. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’}

k) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s and
consolidated entity’s assets, are reviewed at each
balance sheet date 1o determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. f any such indications
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating
unit eéxceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement, unless
an asset has previously been revalued, in which case
the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal 1o the
extent of that previous revaluation with any excess
recognised through profit or loss,

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (group of units) ona
pro rata basts.

1) Calculation of recoverable amount

For oil and gas assets the estimated future cash flows
are based on estimates of hydrocarbon reserves,
future production profilss, commodity prices,
operating costs and any future development costs
necessary to produce the reserves. Estimates of future
commeodity prices are based on contracted prices
where applicable or based on forward market prices
where available.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater
of their net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverakle amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
assets belongs.

m) Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not sxceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised. No
impairment loss is recorded in respect of goodwill or
indefinite life intangible assets.

n} Capitalisation of borrowing costa

Borrowing costs, including interest and finance
charges relating to major oil and gas assets under
development up to the date of commencement

of commercial operations, are capitalised as a
component of the cost of development. Where funds
are borrowed specifically for qualifying projects
the actual borrowing costs incurred are capitalised.

Where the projects are funded through general
borrowings the borrowing costs are capitalised based
on the weighted average borrowing rates.

Borrowing costs incurred after commencement of
commercial operations are expensed.

o) Production properties

Production properties are carried ot balance

sheet date at cost less accumulated amortisation

and accumulated impairment losses. Production
properties represant the accumulation of all
exploration, evaluation, development and acquisition
costs in relation to areas of interest in which
production licences have been granted.

Amortisation of costs is provided on the unit-of-
production basis, separate calculations being made
for each resource. The unit-of-production basis
results in an amortisation charge proportional to
the depletion of sconomically recoverable reserves
{comprising both proven and prolxable reserves}.

Amounts {including subsidies) received during the
exploration, evaluation, development or construction
phases which are in the nature of reimbursement or
recoupment of previously incurred costs are offset
against such costs.

p) Property, plant and equipment

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant and equipment 5-33%

All property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost. At balance sheet date property, plant
and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a diminishing value
basis so as to allocate the cost of each item of
equipment over its expected economic life. The
economic life of equipment has due regard to physical
life limitations and to present assessments of economic
recovery. Estimates of remaining useful lives are
mads ont a regular basis for alt assets, with annual
reassessment for majer items. Gains and losses on
disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken
into account in determining the operating results for
the ye«r.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes
deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash
on hand and which are used in the cash management
function on a day-to-day basis, net of outstanding
bank overdratts.

r) Receivables

Trade accounts receivable, amounts due from related
parties and other receivables represent the principal
amounts due at balance date plus accrued interest
and less, where applicable, any uneamed income
and allowance for doubtful accounts.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

s) Payables

Payables represent the principal amounts
outstanding at balance date plus, where applicable,
any accrued interest. Trade payables are normally
paid within 30 derys.

t} Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet

when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of rescurces ermbodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of meney and,
where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability.

Restoration

Provisions for future environmental restoration are
recognised where there is g present obligation as

a result of exploration, development, production,
transportation or storage activities having been
underiaken, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The estimated future obligations include
the costs of removing facilities, abandoning wells and
restoring the affected areas.

The provision of future restoration costs is the best
estimate of the present value of the future expenditure
rexquired to settle the restoration ebligation at the
reporting date, based on current legal requirements.
Future restoration costs are reviewed annually

and any changes in the estimate are reflected in

the present value of the restoration provision at the
balance sheet date, with a corresponding change in
the cost of the associated asset.

The amount of the provision for future restoration costs
relating to exploration, development and production
facilities is capitalised and depleted as a compeonent
of the cost of those activities.

u) Employee benefits

The following liabilities arising in respect of
employees benefits are measured at their nominal
amounts:

- wages and salaries and annual leave expected
to be settled within twelve months of the
reporting date; and

- other employee benefits expected 1o be settled
within twelve months of the reporting date.

All other employee benefit liabilities expected to be
seitled more than 12 months after the reporting date
are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows in respect of services provided up
to the reporting date. Licbilities are determined after
taking into consideration estimated future increase in
wages and salaries and past experience regarding
sialf departures. Related on-costs are included.

v} Joint ventures

When a member of the group participates in a

joint venture arrangement, the member recognises
its proporticnate interest in the individual assets,
liahilities, revenue and expenses of the joint venture.
The liabilities recognised include its share of those for
which it is jointly liable.

Details of major joint venture interests are set out in
Notes 13 and 19.

w) Income Tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the pericd is
the taxx payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tox assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tox losses.

Deferred income tox is provided in full, using the
lability methed, on temporary diffsrences arising
betwesen the tcot bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying armounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tex is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or Hability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
incoms tax is determined using tax rates {and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the reporting date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is reatised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temnporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deforred tox liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in controlled
entities where the parent entity is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Delerred tox assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current

tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation autherity. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset whera the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settls on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Current and deferred tax balances atiributable
to amounts recognised directly in equity are also
recognised directly in equity.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

x) Foreign Currency
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of each group entity are
measured using its functional currency, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which that entity operates. The consclidated financiat
statemenis are presented in Australian dollars, as
this is the parent entity's functional and presentation
CurTency.

Transactions and Balances

Transaction in foreign currencies of entities within
the consolidated entity are translated into functional
currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items that are outstanding
at the reporting date {other than monetary items
arising under foreign currency contracts where the
exchange rate for that monetary item is fixed in the
contract} are translated using the spot rate at the end
of financial year.

Resulting exchange differences arising on settlement
or re-statement are recognized as revenues and
expensas for the financial year.

y) Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries held by Cue Energy
Resources Limited are accounted for at cost in the
separate financial siatements of the parent company.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the purchase method. The cost
of the business combination is measured as the
aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange)
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquires, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The
acquirees identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under AASB 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for sate and
Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised at
fair value less selling costs.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
I, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the

net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

1) Share-based payment transactions
Equity settled transactions:

The Group provides benefits in the form of share-
based payments to executives, senior management
and generdal staff. These personnel render services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-
settled transactions).

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with
employees is measurad by reference 1o the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value for the 2007 and 2008 options
over erdinary shares were determined using the
Black-Scholes Model.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account

is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (market conditions) if applicable. The cost of
equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period

in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the
vesting date).

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
tramsactions at each reporting date until vesting

date reflects (i) the extent to which the vesting date
has expired and (ii} the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity insiruments that will ultimately vest.
No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market
performance conditions being met as the effect of
these conditions is included in the determination of
fair value at grant date. The income staternent charge
or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
only conditional upon a market condition.

If the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases

the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangsment, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee, as measured at the date of maodification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated

as i it had vested on the date of cancellation, and

any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if @ new award is
substituted for the cancelled award and designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new award are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive sffect, if any, of outstanding options
is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share (see note 22).



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’)

aa) Financial instruments
Classification

The group classifies its financial instruments in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial
instruments at the initial recognition.

Financial assets at lair value through profit or
loss

Upon initical recognition a financial asset or financial
liability is designated as at fair value through profit or
loss when:

(a} an entire contract containing one or mere
embedded derivatives is designated as a
financial asset or financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss.

(b) doing so results in more relevant information,
because either:

{i) iteliminales or significantly reduces a
medasurement or recognition inconsisiency
that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on different bases.

(i) agroup of financicl assets, financial liabilities
or both i3 managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the
group is provided internally on thot basis to key
management personnel.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market, and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are not
designated as at fair value though profit or loss.

Present investment stretegy is to keep assets ina
highly licquid state and almost all of the investment
assets are held in cash.

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value
of a financial asset or financial liability classified as at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit
orloss.

Non-listed investment for which fair value cannot be
reliably measured, are carried at cost and tested for
impairment.

Held-to-Maturity Investments

Fixed term investmenis intended to be held to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity investments. They

are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Loans and Receivables

Loan and receivables are measured at fair value at
inception and subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income

is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
method.

Available-for-Sale

Avdailable-for-sale financial assets include any
financial assets not included in the above categories
and are measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to equity. The cumulative gain or loss is held
in equity until the financial asset is de-recognised,

at which time the cumulative gain or loss held in
equity is recognised in profit and loss. An impairment
loss arising in relation to an “available-for-sale”
instrument is recognised directly in profit and loss for
the period.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other
creditors and loans from third parties including inter-
company balances and loans from or other amounts
due to director-related entities.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at
amortised cost, comprising original debt less principle
payments and amortisation.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a
security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. I[f any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference batween
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss - is rermoved from equity
and revoghised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity
instrurments classified as available-for-sale are net
reversed through the income statement.

Full disclosure of information abeut financial
instruments to which the Group is a party is provided
in Note 2.

bb) Equity
Share [ssue Costs

Costs associated with the issue of shares are
recognised as a reduction of the amount collected
per share.
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cc) Equity-based compensation benefits

Details of equity-based compensation arrangements
are set out in Note 24.

Transcctions with directers and employees are
measured by reference to the fair value at grant date
of the equity instrument granted.

dd) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
substantially all the risks emd benetits incidental

to ownership of the asset, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recorded as
an asset and a liability equal to the present value of
the minimum lease payments, including any residual
payments as determined by the lease contract.
Leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis
aver the estimated useful lives where it is likely that
the Company or consolidated entity will obtain legal
ownership of the asset on expiry of the lease. Lease
paymenits are allocated over both the lease interest
expense and the lease liability.

Lease payments for operating leases where
substantial risks and benefits remain with the lessor
are charged as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

ee) Contributed equity

Ordinary share capital is recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received by the company. Any
transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction
of the share proceeds received. Ordinary share
capital bears no special terms or conditions affecting
income or capital entitlements of the shareholders.

) Earmings per share

Basic earnings per share is ealculated as net profit
attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to
exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than
dividends) and preference share dividends, divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated as net profit
atiributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

¢ costs of servicing equity (other than dividends)
and preference share dividends;

» the after tax effect of dividends and interest
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares
that have been recognised as expenses; and

s other non-discretionary changes in revenues
or expensas during the period that would result
from the dilution of potential ordinary shares;
divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary
shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

gg) Rounding

The amounts centained in this financial report have
been rounded to the nearest $1,000 {(where rounding is
applicable} under the option available to the company
under ASIC Class Order 98/0100. The Company is an
entity to which the Class Order applies.




2. Financial Instruments

The Group's principle finoncial instruments comprise receivables, payables, borrowings, available for sale financial
assets, cash and short term deposits.

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate and currency risk through
management’s reqular assessment of fincmcial risks. The objective of the assessment is 1o support the delivery of the
Group's linancial targets whilst protecting future financial security.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foraign currency risk, commodity
price risk, other price risk, credit risk and Yquidity risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage
different types of risk to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rate, foreign exchange and commodity prices.

Aging anatyses and monitoring of specific credit allewemoes are undertaken to manage credit risk, liquidity risk is
monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.

These risks are summarised below.

Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Chief Financial Cfficer under the
quthority of the Board. The Board reviews and agrees management’s assessment for managing each of the risks
identified below, including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit allowances, and future cash flow forecast
projections.

The carrying amounts and net foir values of the economic entity's finanicial assets and liabilities at kxilance date cre:

Carrying Amount Net Fair Value l
2008 2007 2008 2007 |
'Consolidated $000's ,  $000's $000's $000'a
[Fincocal assos __ F0 N B R
,Cash and cash equivalents ) . * ATl _9doa 14760 9104,
Trad and othes receivables s, T .
- Other financial assets _ ] 3. 29 336 269
'Non-traded financial assets I 22703 10,307 22,703’ 10,307
| _ S T |
Flnancial liabtlittes - T - b o
| Trade and other payables . _ t __ 5529, 935} .58 9%
Current liability - tax . L. 480 _loes) 480, 1089,
' Borrowings i 12,821 - 12,821 -
Non-traded financicl liabilities | 18,830 2,004 18,830 2,004
Carrying Amount Net Fair Value
2008 2007 2008 2007
Parent $000's $000°s ] $000°s $000°'s
Finoncial assots | [ . ,'
'Cash and cash equivalents : _lazel S104, 14781 8,104
_Trcdegrlg other r?cgiva_l:!gs L fSG i 291 N 6_6_ 291 ,
i(?t_her_fi_rﬁn_cic_xl assets j o _SE o 269 L 3364 _ 269;
}flece;vqb_lis! Non-cur_'r_ept ' - 1,891 - 1,881
}Non-tmcl_ed_ ﬂncmciu} assets i 15163 11555 15,163 11,555
S . N ii .. |
.Finagqig liabilities T I N . !
Trade and other payables , .. 890 745|+_,, . 80 auwrdlfpropTIng/
_Bonovqigg_:s _ . - -y - -
Non-traded financiel liabilities | 690 746 690 g AJULS
--1eABUTIISOU-- :(ANVRWOD DNIANFAL0
JOIIDXeIUAS 1 HOYda




2. Financial Instruments (cont’)

Risk Exposures and Respenses

{a) Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to market interest rate related primarily to the Group's cash deposits and borrowings

(Note 17).

At balance date, the Group had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to Australian and
overseas variable interest rate risk thet are not designated in cash flow hedges:

; , Consolidated , Parent .
5 2008 2007 ' 2008 2007
$000s $000's . $000°s ) $000's
Finuncml | ansots 7 B o B —— __;_7 L
Cash & cash equivalents i | 141@1* 9104 1478l ' i 9104
Pincnclal liabilities (I . U ‘
 Borrowings i ) (12 821) - - -
Net exposure ) 1,840 9,104 14761 9104

The Group constantly analyses its interest rate opportunity and exposure. Within this analysis consideration is
given to existing positions and alternative arrangement on fixed or variable deposits.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate opportunity/risk in existence at the balance sheet date.

At 30 lune, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant,
post tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Based upon the average balance of net exposure during the year, if interest rates changed by +/-1%, with all
other variables held constant, the estimated impact on post-tax profit and equity would have been:

Consolidated Parent

2008 2007 2008 2007

5000's $000's 5000°s $000'z
 Impact on post-tax profit _ - . I R
Interest rates +1% 4 __1_6_0f 103 160
Interest rates -1% Lo @n, (160) N (103) (1600
Impact on equity . o )
Interest rates +1% T o 37 lgﬂ‘[ _ l03 160
_Intere_ast_ rates -1% (37) (160}, (103) {160)

A movement of + and - }% is selected because this historically is within a range of rate movements and

available economic data suggests this range is reasonable.
{b) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is subject to {oreign exchange rate risk on its international exploration and appraisal activities where
costs are incurred in foreign currencies, in particular United States dollars.

The Board approved the policy of holding certain funds in United States dollars to manage foreign exchange risk.

The Group's expaosure to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date was as follows (holdings are shown
in AUD equivalent):

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
UsD NZD PNG KINA USD NZD PNG KINA

Consolidated : $000°s $000's $000°s $000°s $000's $000's
Financial assets 4 ] 3 , . ) ,
Cush cmd cqsh ?iui_vc_lents 12 773 .. i 7.762 - -
Receivables L 7 564 - 901 - -
r- - : - - —t - — T t i
Finencial l!ahllltles | ‘ ;
. f - - e —_—- - - ¥ - - +
Current payables I 4,297 4 - - -
it v gl [l S - —1—-- . _ + e
Borrowings [ aen | 3 - -




2. Financial Instruments (cont”)

The carrying amounts of the Parent Entity’s financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in AUD
dollars except as set out below:-

| 30 June 2008 , 30 June 2007 |

" UsDb = NzZD PNGKINA' USD  NZD  PNGEINA '
Parent Entity . $000°a $000's |, S000°s |, $000's  $OO0's $000°s l
Pamdedassss | |l L
.Cash and cazh equivalents Rt T I S I
 Receivables I I < -
Poacialliabilites | | |1 I |
Currentpayables | 4 - d d |

For the year ended as at 30 June, if the currencies set out in the table below, strengthened or weakened against
the US dollar by the percentage shown, with all other variables held constant, net profit for the year would
increasef{decrease} and net assets would increase / (decrease) by:

? Consolidated ; Parent |
" 2008 2007 ! 2008 ' 2007 !
$000°s $000's $000°s $000°s
| Impact on post-tax profi T R ]
| AUD/USD +10% e +__& 786, 87768,
 AUD/USD -10% - @ e @ (766)
Impact on equity Lo , # IO *
(AUD/USD +10% Lo 88 7, Jswo T8
AUD/USD -10% : 816) (766) | (917) (766)

Management believes the balance date risk exposures are representative of the risk exposure inherent in
the financial instruments. A movement of + and - 10% is selecled because a review of recent exchange rate
movements and economic data suggests this range is reasonable.

{¢) Commodity Price Risk

The Group is involved in oil and gas exploration and appraisal and since April 1998 has received revenue
from the sale of hydrocarbons. Exposure to commodity price risk is therefors limited to this production and from
successiul exploration and appraisal activities the quantum of which at this stage cannot be measured.

Commodity price risk exposure

The Group is exposed to commaodity price fluctuations through the sale of petroleum proeducts denominated

in US dollars. The Group may enter into commodity crude oil price swap and option contracts to manage its
commeadity price risk.

At 30 June 2008 the Group has no open oil price swap contracts (2007: nil). No such contracts were opened during
the reporting peried (2007: nil),

If the US dollar oil price changed by +/-10% from the average oil price during the year, with dall other variables
held constant, the estimated impact on post-tax profit and equity would have been:

Consolidated Parent ‘
2008 2007 2008 2007

$000°s $000°s 5000°s 5000's
,Impact on post-tax profit J o L
US dollar oil price +10% o o344 3@71[ I -
'US dollar oil price -10% ; {3419 {387) | - -

: Impact on equity , i T e I. S

US dollar oil price +10% ‘ o yli ) 33? - -
US dallar oil price ~10% ) T (3.414) (387)]+ - -




2. Financial Instruments (cont’)
Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for
strategic rather than trading purposes. The Group does not actively trade these investments and the potential
impact of ey movements in equity market prices would have an insignificant impact on profit and ecquity.

The Group's sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from the pricr year.
{d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the rigk that the group, although balance sheet solvent, cannot meet or generate sufficient
cash resources to meet its payment obligations in full as they fall due, or can only do so at materially
disadvantagecus terms.

Ultimate respensibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking focilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously menitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and licbilities.

The Group believes that licquidity is not a risk because the Group has Totad Financial Liabilities of $18.83M (2007: $2.0M),
which consist of current liabilities of $6M (2007: $2.0M) and non current liabilities of $12.8M (2007: Nil) and ictal
Current Financial Assets of $22.4M (2007: $10M) of which $14.8M (2007: $9.1M) consists of cash or cash equivalents.

The Group is consequently more than sufficiently solvent to meet its payment cbligations in full as they fall due.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close

out market positions. The Group aims ot maintaining flexibility in funding to meet ongoing operational
requirements, exploration and development expenditure, and small-to-medium-sized opportunistic projects and
investments, by keeping committed credit facilities available.

During the current financial year the Group funded the Maari oil field development from external borrowings as
part of its liquidity risk management process.

Financing arrangements

The Group and the parent entity had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities as at reporting date:

Consolidated . Parent ‘
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007 '
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
:Flja_tin_g rate ) ]]L B R . + )
'~ Expiring beyond one year (Profect facility) 8012, d - -!

The following table analyses the contractual maturities of the Group's financial liabilities into relevant groupings
based on the rernaining period at the reporting date 1o the contractual undiscounted cash flows comprising
principal and interest repayments. Estimated variable interest expense is based upon appropriate yield curves
existing as at 30 June 2008,

Lessthan 1to2 2to§ More than
1 year years years S years
Consolidated $000’s 5000's $000s . $000%
2008 | - : +
Non-derivative financial liabilities ; : ) .
Trade and other payables . 5,529 , -; -, -
. Current toox liobility 7 . 480 . -, - -,
Bank loans ' - - 12,821 -
v N | 6,009 ! 12,821, -
00y * ,
Non-derivative financial liabilities '
Trado and other payables L s, 4 .
rgx_rrent tax liability . l_.GEig+ ) -, - -,
.Bank loans : - - -
‘ 2,004, - ! 3




2. Financial Instruments (cont’)

Less than 1to2 2105 " More than

1 year yoars years 3 years
Parent . $000°s $000s . $000s = S000's |
2008 l ! ! ) T
——— e — - - _ e = + e b = - e = -
 Trade and other payables . . - 18] o R | L
Amounts owing o controlled entities I - - - 5?41
T ! 16| - - 574|
- Lo SR | ' 1
b —— - e e e— —+ —————1»- -+ -4 1

| 2007 ! ;

L - - —_ - - . - - ~ + —_— + - £l
Trade and other payables — N (U
| Amounts owing to controlled entitles ! ) - | 574,
E 1701 - | 574

1
.

Amounts owing to controlled entities are shown at their carrying value as any interest charged on the loans is
added to the loan balance.

(e} Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, available-for-sate financiat assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential
delfault of the counter party, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments,
Exposure at balance date is addressed in each applicable note.

The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties, and as such collateral is not requested nor is
it the Group's policy to securitize its trade and other receivables.

It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credil terms are subject to credit verification
procedures including an assessment of their independent credit rating, financial position, past experience and
industry reputation. The risks are regularly monitored.

At balance date there are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.
(f} Fair values

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company are recognised on the balance sheets at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policies in note L.

Basis for determining fair values

The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimaling the fair values of
financial instruments:

Trade and other receivables

The carrying valus less impairment provision of trade receivables is a reasonable approximation of their fair
values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables.

Avcailable-for-sale finoacial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the
reporting date.

Derivatives
There are ne derivatives in place at 30 June 2008 (2007: nil).
Financial liabilities

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date. Where these cash flows are in a foreign currency the present value
is converted into Australian dollars at the foreign exchange spot rate prevailing at reporting date.



3 Consolidated f Parent |
" 2008 | 2007 ' 2008 2007 \
$000's | $000's $000's $000s |
3. Revenue o L ; o e J
Operating Revenve o N R
 Production income L . ._38308, [ L S
nggrggmfees ~ T 171 285 65_1._ 746{
SR . O S 4
:Otherhlcggo o U o .
 Interest from cash and cash equivalents S TR -1 s 1,351‘1?
Gain on sale of available for sale financial assets - 759 - 799
| Total Revenue L | 38,845 9,669 1426 2,85
4 Expenses 1 S L :
Operating Expenses | e
| Net foreign currency losses } | a8 14 27 1439,
 Depreciation. . . ST ) 7,
rﬂmﬂ@e expenses (net of superannuation) 1 1040, 1308] 140 1309,
| Superannuation contribution expense oo 14 1,
|Productioncosts /. T 1) AL -
Abandonmentprovision } B W
Administrative expenses . 451 449
_Operating lease expense .o e, 136 | 166 136,
Amortisation preduction properties \ ) @_% 1,504 -, -
’_Eix_plgrgﬁon and evaluation costs written off . 129 29,139L ) _EQ_+ B 1564
Write down of the carrying value of investments - - : 28,983
. Total Operating Expenses N F 22,932 35,768 | 2,241, 32,680
e B 3ee : L ) . Tt : !
157 Auditors Remuneration ) Vo .
i&rgoqnts paid or due and payable to the quditor for: L o - )
_Audit or review of the financial reports . -__w 55,000 Jf ) 5@1 §5,{]00‘
. - 4 _— ‘- S
Other Services I v o o e
tax compliance o . 18,500 34,181 18,500 34,181
P i 73,500 89,181 73,500 89,181

No cther services were provided by the auditor during the period, other than these set out above.



\ Consolidated Parent |
! 2008 . 2007 ¢ 2008 2007
$000's |,  $000's $000's 5000’
6Taxation | o [ l
lncoma Tax Expense i L . i B o
Curremlax o 7 ] R _ﬂq bo66T -, -;
Ad]ustment prior penod tax R 268 -f—' _ -, :*‘
Pefer{ec_i_t_m_c ) o 2447 (42) - -
i o ) L 3825 1,524 - f
. S A S 1'
[ncom tax expense (benefiljisatributableto: | | S . i
! Profit from continuing aperations i 3.825 1,524 - -
[ - ] 3,825 1,524 ] - 5
¢ —— e B . 4 1
Aggngute income | tax ‘expense ) . 1 . )
Deferred Income tax {revenue) expenses anlud T i
lin income tax comprises: L . .
! Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assels i _ _{_l 4, IZﬁ LI“— o Lo
L(Decrecxse) increase in deferred tax liabiliies 16,575 130 - -
| o - 2.447 130 - -
' - |___ i} - —
rNumerical mct;ncﬂiution of lnc-omo. tax expen.-w to B ) ! ) )
primu facle tax on accounting profitloss o . ) + } ,
Prohb’(loss) fmm continuing operations before :
income tax expense L l§,75476* (2_.6_,099)_4!_ L g)‘ (29.8_24)4
FTc::: expensel(beneﬁtiat Australian tax rate of i ) ) T l
l 30% (2007: 30%) o 55% 7830 (244) (8_,9!@7)+
! Tcxx effect of qmounts which are not deductible ‘
, {taxable) in calculating taxable income - - - -
| 4,664 (7,830) (244) (8.947)
Equity cost deductions ) Qe e 214)
, Difference in overseas tax rates o l_ _ 590 610) _ - -
A!lowable mining deductions I 1Y 619 _. -,
+ Adjustments for current tax of prior pertods - L__ - T -, -
Tcrx losses carried forward L - 9473 244 9,161
Pre\nously unrecogmsed tox losses now recognised ‘; (364) : -, -
]Income tax expense (benefit) i \ 3.825 : 1,524 1 - : -
i
Tax losses T
Unused tox losses for which no deferred tax asset . i T 7 i
has been recognised o 13,674 9,654 9,654 8,039
Potential tax bensfit at 30% i 4,102 2,896 | 2,89 2411
i i
» Current tox hah:ixttea i —7 1T _ : :[_7 : _‘T T :
Llncome tax payable attributable to: ) 17 ) . i L N 1*
Parent Entity ) o it -l - - °
* Other entities net in the tax consolldcrted group 480, 1,069} - -
480, 1,069, - -




6. Taxation (cont’)
Tax Losses 2007 !
Non-current assets - deferred tux assets $000’s $000's ,
Movements Connol_ldjtegl o L_ B l _ L i ] l ) i
At 1 July 2006 o ) 7+Al - - i ) ,
Chﬁrgedfcredited to the income stctement o -A‘ - l B B
maolunemm ] o - - .
Mlcre&ted to the income stcxtement o : 14,128 14,128] + ) j
tﬁtmz_ﬁﬁ_ ) o _i 14,128 14,128 L, i .
i I i | . j
Exploration :
| Non-current — deferred tax liabilities Assets . Total |
‘ Movements - queEt Entity ) . l l L j
e
! Chcu‘gedlcredltecl o the income statement N - . .
430 June 2007 2 - . ‘
(Charged)fcredtted to the income statement { (16,617 I (16617 . ) J
A 30 June 2008 _ , (16617 (16617) . |
| Deferred tax bc:lcnces net 1mpc:ct on . ‘ .
L“_1°°.‘_"E lax expernses e - . ; ! —- 4
{30 June 2007 __ - ! : o ' ;
3_0 ]_nE 2908 ) 2489 2,489 . B
There are no movements in tax balances in the parent entity in the current or prior year.
Consolidated Parent
2008 2007 ' 2008 2007 !
$000°s $000's $000°s $000's
7. Capital and Reserves o l . :
{a) Share Capital ) L. . ,
Issued and paid up 628,239, 007 i : i oL .
(2007: 628,239,007) ordinary fully paid shares l4l,900 141,800 141,900 141,800
. . . - . . I . 4
_él th_e l_)egl_nrlmg of t_h_e repgrtxing pexlod L 1_4_11(}0 14_1,477 ) 141 800 141.477‘
 Shares and options issued during the year . I 1
18/04/12 1,285,334 options @ 20 cents () N .om[ - 113,
19/04/12 1,263,333 options @ 22.5 cens ) b o - 106
19/04/12 1,283,333 options @ 25 cents (i} o - 104‘# - t(}_4‘
04!04]08 1,000,000 options @ 35 cents (11) |‘ 100 - 100 -
Closing balance I 141,900 141,800 | 141,900 141,800

i} Grant of 3,850,000 options to employees.

ii} Gremt of 500,000 options ecch to employees R.J. Coppin and AM. Knox.

Shares:

Ordinary shares have the right 1o receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the

Company, to participate in the proceeds from the Sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number
of and moneys paid up on shares held. Ordinary shares entitle holders to one vots, sither in person or

by proxy at a meeting of the Company.



7. Capital and Reserves (cont’)

{k} Unlisted optiona

As at 30 June 2008 the following Unlisted options were outstanding:

4,100,000 Unlisted options to employees, over fully paid shares. Options are exercisable as follows:

No. of Exercise No. of i
Options Price Grant Expiry Options ;

~ olo7? (cents) Date ™  Date  Expired Lapsed®  30/06/08 Vested |
' 1,500,000 35 ol06/06;  01/08/08! 1,000,000 500,000/ . -}
- —p————— . — .- Tt ——1 S —k o R -- =

T o7y .3 040408 OLOB/0 -, _.  _zl_ Loooooo 1,000,000
1283334 200 ovo47) 19104/127_ ! 250,000| 1033334 1,033,334
1,283,333 25 23/04/07T 19/04/12 . 250,000 1033333 1,033,333
e e e e S s /e —t B
1,283,333 25 230407 19/04/12° - 250,000 1,033.333. N

" 5,350,000] ' : 1000000  1250,000] 41000000  3.086.667;

* Options granted to an employee in prier financial years who has ceased employment with the Company.
There are no further conditions attached to the options.

Options:

Option holders do not have the right to receive a dividend and are not entitled to vote at a meeting of the
Company. Options may be exercised ot any time from the date they vest to the date of their expiry. Share options
convert into ordinary shares on ¢ one for one basis on the date they are exercised.

(c) Avdilable for sale financial assets reserve

Neature and purpose of reserve

The fodr value reserve recognises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the available for sale investments
until the investment is realised. Refer to Statement of Changes in Equity for movement in reserve account.

(d) Share based payment reserve

Nature and purpose of reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefit provided as part of agreements entered into by the
company during the year. Refer to note 24 and the remuneration section of the Director's Report for details.

{e) Capital management

When managing capital, management's cbjective is to ensure the entity continues as a going concern as well
as to maintain optimal retums to shareholders and benetits for other stakeholders. Management also aims to
maintain a capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the entity.

Management are constantly adjusting the capital structure {o take advantage of favourable costs of capital or
high returns on assets. As the market is constantly changing, management may change the amount of dividends
to be paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issua new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During 2008 management did not pay any dividends.
There has been ne change to the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the entity.
The gearing ratios for the year ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007 are as follows:

Consolidated Parent

2008 2007 2008 2007

$000's $000°s $000°s $000°s
Borrowings oL laem Ju ., -
&'T"mde and other H@!es 6,009 2,004, 690 746
Total . 4. 1880, 2004, 6% 746,
Less cash and cgs_}'{ eq_uivc_lenls 14,761 9,104, 14,761 9,104
Netdebt . | 4088, 7.100] Q4071 (8,358}
‘Total equity - 87.077 75,172 68,048 68,677
‘Total capital o 141,900 141,800 | 141,900 141,800,
Gearing ratio L 4T NA% | N/A % N/A %]

Cue Taranaki Pty Ltd, pursuant to its debt facility arrangements, has undertaken not to issue shares o third
parties. Apart from this undertaking the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.



Consolidated ' Parent |
- 2008 2007 2008, 2007
| so00s ! so00% 000 | $000% |
8.TradeandReceivables | . . . __
Cumentrecefvables | ., 4 . ]
,Tade receivables RN TR /- O ) A SO
Non-trade receivables and prepayments - 66 291 66 291
7,606 934 66 291 |
r- - ===~ . - B ; ]
(. - - - - R — 1 —_—— - —— - —-*—T- —— i
[The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting | .
Ldatewasq_sfollows: S ] L U R o
Less than one month 7,540 643 - -
p— T T m— - = - Lt T —_——t - = - - =t -4
One to three months _ _ [ R o I -
, Three tosix months B A U S o
: Six to twelve months _ _ A o D oo
: Gregter than twelve months o - - - -
! _ o 7,540 543 - -

[ — —

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and settlement terms are generally within 30 days.

Trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired and relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default.

Impaired receivables
At 30 June 2008 there were no current trade receivables that were impaired (2007: $nil)

The balance of the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables at 30 June 2008 was $nil {2007: $nil).
There has been no movement in the allowance during the year.

Consolidated Parent ]
2008 2007 2008 2007

i $000'n $000°s $000’s $000°2

RNon-current recaivables

l
M .- . . . .
_Receivables due from Eantro]]ed entities: ; . N )
Non-interest bearing : J, o -l - L83k,
|

_ Interest-bearing

- ] - 1,891

Receivables due from controlled entities are shown net of impairment losses of $51.3 million (2007: $51.3 million)
as detailed in Note 10.

Receivables due from controlled entities are for locins made in the ordinary course of business for an indefinite
period. Interest-bearing amounts owing by controlled entities are at normal market terms and conditions.

The Directors consider the carrying value of receivables reflect their fair values.



) Consolidated Parent
' g008 2007 2008 2007
$000°'s $000°s $000's $000°s |
9. Property, Plant and Equipment | | [,
Office and computer equipment | ) L
Cost 264 234 264 234
oS! - S IR el . e R
ﬁ{\_cgm_ul_at_e_gl depreciation (152), (98) (152} (98)
o - ~ 112 136 12 136 |
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each : ' |
class of property, plant and equipment at the ‘ .
' beginning and end of the current financial year ‘ i
aresstoutbelows | | o
[Bﬂl_@czﬂbfqinnieggfx% o .o s, 84y 18 ____ 8
 Additions . oo S 30, 89 30 8
,Disposals , R R o D
 Depreciation expense o ! (54} (37 (54 (37
Balance at end of year | 112 138 112 136
Consolidated Parent !
2008 2007 2008 2007
‘ $000's $000's $000°s 5000's |
.10. Other Financial Agsets. _ L [ }
| Non-Current L S fe J
Shcxre_s in other companies (Note 11) T §_35+ 269‘+ - _(_3§§+ 2769&
Shares in subsidiaries (Note 12) - -1 585, 585
4 ! : 4 B . ' b S .
1 Advances to subsidiaries - - 104,553 108,815
i ST IT=L T - - : t —T= Ty
' Less allowance for impeirment . - - (51,363} (51,363,
! S 336, 269 54111 58,306
1 ' I 1
- e - - - + e L
There has been no movement in the allowance for !
impairment during the year. In the prior period an !
impairment writedown of $28.98M was recorded '
_increasing the impairment allowance as follows: . ; S
" Altowance for impairment: o , L .
Balance of beginning of year _ 1 -, -, _§§_1.363)L ) (77227,3@!0)1
FIrn_pairmgnt write-down i o t - - - (28,983)
- Balance at end of year 1 - - {51,363 (51,363)

Impairment write down in the prior period was primarily driven by the downgrade of the Jeruk cil discovery
in the Sampang PSC, Indonssia. Following the assessment of the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units a write-down of $28.983million (Note 13} was required in the 2007 year and a corresponding write-down
was required in the subsidiary company investment for the same amount.

Consolidated Parent
2008 2007 2008 2007
, $000°’s $000'a $000°s $000's
'11. Shares in Other Companies i ] . )
. Non-Current : L
Fair value of exchange listed shurés based o-n ) I ‘
quoted markst price at balance date i 336 289, 336 269




12. Shares in Subsidiary and Associates at Balance Date

Parent |
2008 2007 Interest Country of Principal :
Subsidiary Componies s 5 Held Incorporation Activity
i ‘ Petroleum '
: ‘ production &
:CuePNG Ot CompanyPyLed | 1. 1~ 100%  Ausiolia =~ exploration
Cuo Energy Holdings Lid 1, 1 _100% _ Ausiolia, Administration)
: ' Petroleum '
: ‘ | production & r
1 Gue Energy Indonesia Pty Ltd. A, oo 10%  Ausmalia,  exploration,
. ‘ ! Petroleum }
| Gue (Ashmors Cartier) Pty Lid . 2, . _100%  Austalia;  exploration
‘ ‘ ' Patroleum :
,Cue Sampang Pty Ltd 1 1, 100%,  Australiai  exploration|
' \ Patroleum |
Cue Taranaki Pty Ltd 1 1 1(30‘?11k Austmlicxj'[ exploration
F— B e _ - — —h—— - = —_——— e
! f | . Peatroleum -
 Toro Oil Pty Ltd ~ l; o1 ! 100% Agstra]iai exploration .
: ! . j | Petroleum !
: Omaiti Oil Pty Ltd o1 1 120%1 ) E:ustrq]ia} exploration |
. I T : Petroleum
iGglveston Mining Corporoﬂiog Pty Ltd_ 1 __2_8'6_§7§ ) l,?.8§,878l ](]0“/‘3+ Australia | E_axp!orationi
, Less accumulated impairment losses (1,286,678); (L.285.678), . +
| ; :
L ~ - . H |
' ' . Petroleum
Cue Exploration Pty Ltd J' 1,829,077 . 1,79@97),077; ]_CLD"@+ Australia , exploration
, Less accumnulated impairment losses | (1,343,808). {1,343,808) . ‘
| [
. ; 585,269 585,269 ) . )
Totail i 585,278 585.278

Al companies in the Group have a 30 June balance date. No changes have occurred in ownership

percentage interest during the year.

Equity accounting for the associated Company has not been applied, as the amounts involved are immatertal.
The Associate company was dormant during the current period and has no material assets or liabilities.




! Consolidated Parent
2008 . 2007 2008 2007

. $000s | $000% $000's $000's
+ 13, Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure : _4'_____ |
; Costs carried forward in respect of areas of interest ! |
in exploration and evaluation phase 19,762 ) 75,398 L -
| Expenditure incurred during the year - 11,543, 14395 129 l N 156
Expenditure written off during the year o (129): 29,139 (129, (156}
Expenditure transferred to production properties . _ 43510 -l ]
! Expenditure refunded during the year (1) - (2,582) N -
' Closing balance 31,176 | 19,762 . -
e T T T . |

- ———— - ————— - - — e —— ——.—'-——_- — - —_——— = e - -
’ 1) In early 2006, Cus entered mto an agreement

with Medco Strait Services Pte Ltd {("Medco”). The ' '
| agreement resulted in Medco reimbursing Cue in !
| cash for the Medco proportional share of the past .
| Jeruk expenditure and working capital, R o o L .
I Ac:cumulmed costs incurred on current areas of I 'T
‘  interest net of amounts written oif_-__ 1 USRI ———J'f o
| -Sampang PSC SR e I
'L - PNG PRL 9 675" 635 -

el AN e e b 2O - _ — e e

‘_-PNGPPLIBO o o 11,305 AS'QUO,______;._ o _-ﬁ
- PNG PDL 3 (non unitized) 28 w24

- PNG PRL 8 1,442 977 - -1
3 - — B -— -
CamorvonBasnEPS3 | s o - -
| - WA-359-P 781 137 - -
o o= = ee—— - — —_—— - - —t Fo— — e—— e '
-WAS0P - R Y A ] I |
' . WA-361-P 122, 139 !
eV 7_————i—_——-- _— e -
| - WA-389P 371! 9 | y
. : e S e
L oowAd0sP L R ] HN . 2
| -TRIP o ) 18y a2 S
| ~TRS8P _ ) as. ___ . o
| -PEP38413 ) ) L . S .
1_.59RL_7_ o 65 17 - -
, Net accumu]med explorcxtlon and eva]uanon ' :
11 expenditure N 31,176 18,762 - -

14, Impairment of Cash Generating Units

At 30 June 2008 the Group reassessed the carrying amount of its il and gas assets (refer Note 15,
Production Properties) for indicators of impairment such as changes in future prices, future costs and reserves.
As a result, the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units were formally reassessed but no impairment

write-downs were required,

Estimates of recoverable amounts are based on the assets’' value in use, determined by discounting each asset’s

estimated future cash flows at asset specific discount rates. The pre-tax discount rates applied were equivalent

to post-tax discount rates of 10% (2007: 10%) depending on the nature of the risks specific to each asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent from other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.



Consolidated ' Parent
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000°s $000s © $000°s $000°s
L!§_13§oduchon Properties | I )
Bulancembegmmngofygqr _ | 4819 4838 - ) -
Expendxture incurred during the year 20660 16N I -
Amomsanon expense ) o4 asesny o asoay o -, -
Restorct:on provision amorhschon s 2% Q] R -
E Expend.\ture transferred from exploration hcences - 43,510 - -
(Beloncoatend of year o 55,486 48,119 - -
. S U U B
}Nel achn:l}_ﬂEted costs incurred on areas of mterest U IO .
PiNg PDL 3 {unitized) 43057 4609 o -
Oyong Scmptmg PSC 7 B R ﬂ___v %'_],@95 el o -
i Maari - PMP 38160 ‘ 28,721 . 16,205 - -
['Eotgl o | 55,486 48,119 -, -
16. Trade and Other Payables | L
| Current o R
: Trade Creditors cmd accruals ) e 5496 8w o _Sgi o144
! D1g9cj9r§ and Dlrector re]ated ennhes ) N EA ] ?ii T 3_3_i ?.84
}Advcu}cﬁes from subsidiaries ) - - 574, 574
N 5529 935 690, 746

The Directors consider the carrying amount of payables reflect their fair values. Trade creditors are generally
settled within 30 days. The Group does not have any s1gmf1cant concentration of credit risks.

17, Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowmgs F L . o

Thxs note provides information about the contractual |

terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and

borrowings. For more information about the Group's

exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk,
560 Note 2. '+ } o | .

' Non-current liabilities ' L

coTom T T - o= - -

Bank loans - secured . 1282 -l o, -
_Bank loans - unsecured - - - -

12,821 | - ]

Bank Loans - Secured

A lending facility of US$20 million was entered into during the 2007 reporting peried which bears a floating rate
of interest. The facility is secured by a first charge over the Group's interests in the Moari assets in New Zealand
with a carrying amount at 30 June 2008 of A$28.7 million. The Group is subject to certain covenants which are
common for such a facility. The average rate for the year was 4.37%, and A$12.8 million was outstanding at the
balance sheet date. The facility is available until 2012, and the current amount drawn dewn is expected to be
fully repaid by 2012 directly from production receipts upon commencement of production.



! Consolidated Parent i

2008 2007 2007

$000's $000°a $000's I

18, Provisions ) I
, Cuzrent bo oo S R . o
_E@Elgye_e bel}eﬁtj i 119 280 119 280
i"%ffr_me' - _____: - IT__F _
_Employee benefits _ L L - I - 5,
 Restoration 769 80l o -
962 826 | 193 25

Movernents in each class of proviston during the financial year, other than provisions relating te employee

benefits are set out below:

' Total
- Resteoration
Consolidated . . $000's
lBalcmE at 1 July 2007 ) ; I
Provisions made during the year i 2%
Provisions used during the year B S I
Unwind of discount - ———
: Change in discount rate . - Lo
| Foreign currency fluctuations “ (268)
- Balance at 30 June 2008 . L 763
‘Parent

_Firpvi;iorgxs made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Unwind of discount

. Change in discount rate

Balance at 30 June 2008

Restoration

Provisions for future removal and restoration costs are recognised where there is a present obligation as a result
of expleration, development, production, transportation or storage activities having been undertaken, and it

is probable that an outflow of economic benetits will be required 1o settle the obligation. The estimated future

obligations include costs of removing facilities, abandoning wells and restoring the affected areas.




19. Interests in Joint Ventures

Cue Gross
Interest Area Net Area Permit Expiry

 Property i Operator (%) {Km?) (Km?) Date !
Peatroleum Exploration Properties :
| Brss Bursit - Tasmama o o, L o
7P [Cue Energy Resources ].muted 50 { 2,629 [ 1315, 081220 191’
_T/38P Cue Energy Resources Limited | 30 28618 1,309 08/12/2010.
.CmarvigﬁajiEﬂWQatern Australia ) o L . o 4‘
(EP363 ﬂpache Northwest Pty Ltd _i 10 opﬁiﬂ 322 * o ! 11/08/2007
"WA-358P _Cue Energy Resources ].fm}l}ec‘i_‘ 2@1 ] 71,2181 24 X 310172011
WAZ0P  CuenergyResoureslimied 2, 1215, 283 3yo0ll
(WA%IP | [CuelneryRessureolimted | 13| 126} 18 3uslmoll,
WABHP [CuoEnergyResourceslLimied | 100, 3825 345 29080012
. WA-409-FP , Cue Energy Resources Limited | 50! 969 ; 284 20/04/2014
| Timor Sea _ o } - . *
ACIRi.J 7 Coogee Resources Lm'uled . ZOT 420 ‘ 84 Retention Licence ‘
! New Zgul_m_ld ) _ ] L,
PMP38I60  OMVNewZealandLimied | | af  ast  onesw
-PEP 38413 | OMV New Zealand Limited | 51 45,98, 2.299 31/12/2010,
Papua New Guinea - . - . o
{PRL 9 | Barracuda Pty Lid C o lag] 6. 89l 171212012
PRLS +(_)1J_Sg-urc_}it9{ . 1072 512, 549 17122012
PPL 190 , Qil Search Ltd 10.947 1,866, 1966 05/06/2011
| Madura - Indonesia r
T ) - 15}
| (8.181818 -
| Sampang PSC : Santos (Sampang) Pty Ltd - Jeruk field) | 2,006 300.9, 04/12/2027 -
Petroleum Production and Exploration Properties

 Papua New w Guinea , ) )
\PDL 3 Barracuda Pty Lid | 5568892 8! 47’ 23/120021

Consolidated Parent
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000°s $000°s $000's $000's

" The share of asgets and liabilities of the joint ! T

ventures atiributed to the Group have been ' !
'rincl_udeq _u_l}dﬁr the relevant he_cEdilt_tgs: l . ( - . ,
. Cumniﬁatu: . . : . )
Receivables o ' 7538 843, _ -, -
! ! Non Current Assets: ];_ ) o Jf B _; .
E'.xplorcmon and Evalucrhon Expendxture (Nota 13 T-_ 31176 19,76 b - .
Productlon n Properties (Note 15) I 55,486 48,119, - -
Net Assets employed in the Joint Ventures l ] 86,662 67,881 _L -j
Current Liabilities: L , . - .

Pcryables ccsh calls by opemtor J: 5i19* L, ZSBT -, -,
Non Current Liabilities: ] S Lo . .
Borrowings oo 128 L - .
,Other 768 801! - -

. - . LYy - — i

Inc_ome_ o __ . _ I; ) 38,309 7 757[ - -
_Expenses i 20,724 32,071 - -




20. Commitments for Expenditure
a) Exploration Tenements

In order to maintain current rights of tenure to petroloum exploration tenements, the Group has discretionary
exploration expenditure requirements up until expiry of the primary term of the tenements. These requirements,
which are subject to renegotiation and are not provided for in the financial statements, are payable as follows:

; Consolidated ‘ Parent i

2008 2007 2008 ' 2007

$000's | $000's | $000's , $000's i

Notlater than one year o .8 8w, - -

Later than one year but not later than 2 years _ 892 540 - _

Latter than 2 years but not later than 5 years o280 J I -,
LaterthanSyears __ _ _ _ _ | ~ - - -

: | 19212 14,700 - -

If the economic entity decides to relinquish certain tenements and/or does not meet thesa obligations, assets
recognised in the balance sheet may require review in order to determine the appropriateness of carrying
values. The sale, transfer or farm-out of exploration rights to third parties could potentially reduce or extinguish
these obligations.

All commitments relate to Joint Venture projects.

b) Development Expenditure
Consolidated ﬁ Parent
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000s  $000's $000's $000°s
Notlater than one year ]__ mwl ol L
'I:me; thgr} one year but not later than 2 years o _.10{41_3* 15,628 - -,
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years S S o o
Later than 5 years . ’. - | - -
! 33,110 23,445 - -,

All development expenditure comrnitrments relates to the development of oil and gas fields.

¢) Lease Commitments
Consolidated Parent
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000's $000's $000's $000's
' Nen-cancellable operating lease rentals are l |
payable as follows: _ oo L . R
‘Not later than one year } l‘ o IEO4 1 Ui 1_6Q+ 130
' Later than one year but not later than 3 years L - -i_ o - "
Later than 5 years I - al - -
s i 160 130, 160 130

During the year ended 30 June 2008 the Group recognised $0.16 million {2007: $0.13 million) as an expense
in the income staiement in respect of operating leases. The lease over the Company’s business premises
has not been findlised. The expected expenditure over the ensuing financial year is expected to be
approximeately $0.16 million.



21. Events Subsequent to Balance Date
Subsequent to the end of the financial year:

s  MEO Australia Limited has irrevocably committed to drill the Zeus -1 well in Cue’s North West Shelf permit
WA-361-P. Zeus -1 will target a multi - TCF potential gas prospect which is immediately adjacent to the
established North West Shelf Gas Project. The well is expected to be drilled in October 2008. Cue will be
carried at no cost for a 15% interest.

» The Company entered into a farmin arrangement with Todd Exploration Limited, a company associated
with the Director, R.G. Tweedie, to earn a 20% interest in PEP384%4 in the Taranaki Basin, New Zealand.
Cue will earn its interest in the block by funding 30% of the costs of drilling the Matariki -1 well. The farm in
arrangemenis are on commercial terms.

Apart from these arrangements the Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance since the end of the
financial year, not otherwise dealt with in this report or group financial staternents that has significantly or may
significantly affect the operations of Cue Energy Resources Limited, the results of those operations or the state of
affairs of the Company or Group.

22. Earnings Per Share

2008 ) 2007
| seol9) 0044y

80019 (80044,
_SIL719, (827623

| Basic sarningsloss) per share

 Diluted earningsfloss) per share B L _ .

l&! profit/{loss) after tax

| Weighted average number (:;f.c:rdjn&ry ;hares oixtétcmding duﬁr;g; the yea; )
{adjusted for ordinary shares issued during the year) used in the calculation of
 basic and diluted earnings per share

_ 628230007 628,239,007
Basic earning per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity of
the Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary share cutstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

; Consolidated
2008 2007
$000's 3000

! Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share |
'_recqgg:ﬂ% to th_e net profit after tax in the income staternent as follows: B
' Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent from continuing T

! Epel:gﬁon;s _ ) N o 1 !,7_19 X £27,52§) ‘
Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent from discontinued

_operations , l - -

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent , 11,719 (27,623,




22, Ecenings Per Share (cont’)

Consolidated :
. 2008 007
No. of Shares | No. of Shares |

The weighted average number of shares used for the purposes of calculating ’

diluted earnings per share reconciles to the number used to calculate basic

eamingspershareasfollows: _  _ _ _ _____ _| 628230007 628239007,
_Basic eamingspershare L 1 0019 (50044),
Partlly paidshares . S A
Shareoptions L 4. 4100000 9?5‘1000}
*Share acquisition rights L - S U R
 Diluted earnings per share_ Lo seols (30.044)

Options outstanding issued under the Cue Energy’s Executive Share Option Plarn; issued to eligible executives have
been classified as potential ordinary shares and included in the ealculation of diluted eamingsfloss) per share.

During the year, Nil {2007: Nil) options were converted to ordinary shares. The diluted earnings per share
calculation includes that portion of these options and partly paid shares assumed to be issued for nil
considenation, weighted with reference to the date of conversion. The weighted average number included is
4,100,000 {2007: 5,350,000).

Information Concerning the Classification of Securities

(@) All outstanding Options are considered to be patential ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted earnings per share. However diluted earnings per share is not materially different
from basic earnings per share. The options have not been included in the determination of basic earnings
per share. Details relating to the options are set out in Note 7(b}.

{b} Since tha end of the financial year there have been no conversions to, calls of, or subscriptions for ordinary
shares or issues of potential ordinary shares since the reporting date and before the completion of these
financial statements.




23. Financial Reporting by Segments
Segment Information

The Group cperates predominantly in one business, namely the exploration development and production of
hydrocarbons. Revenue is derived from the sale of gas and liquid hydrocarbons.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable 1o a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest-earning assets and revenue,
interest-bearing, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Geographic Segments
The Group operates primarily in Australia but also has international operations in Indonesia, Papua New
Guinea and New Zealand.

 INDONESIA * PNG Nz  AUSTRALIA TOTAL
2008 $000's i $000's $000°s $000's
_Geographic segments o ‘[ . . ‘
Bavapue . * . L
Ravenue from Austmllan m customers e, - l 538, 536
Revepue irc_:m 1;1_1:-_3r_r§c_1u_onc_1! customers 29,962 8, 347 T - -, 38 309
Total revenue S 29.962 8,347 - 536 38845

- - - ;

- - - —_— ——— - —- - + - i - + + - = - -
Results o N N . N .
Segmem results o . 12, 231 N 5:386+ (_369)+ (l,_'7{_1_4)+ _15_.544*
Unaﬂocctted corporate expenses L - - - - -
Eurnings before interest and tu‘x : ‘ '
(“EBIT"} o N 12,231, 5,386 (369) (1,704}, 15,544
N L. 4 l . i .i - P
Proﬁtfﬂou) befnre tax . : ; : ; ] ~ ;
[ncome tax expense ] . (2,715)T (1,110}’ - ! {3,825)"
Nat profit/(loss) for |he perlod o 9,516 4,276 | (369) | (1,704 11,719

i i ‘ } "
. N'on-cunh expensoes B B . . o L
Deprecmtlon and depleuon :_ 11_59§1 ) l.45$73; - 541 13,111 .
Unallocated corperate deprec1ahon cmd ‘ \
_deplation o ; - - - - -
To:czl depreciation and depleno_n B -,_; 11 _,_5981 1459 - 511'* 13,11 !_;
Exploruton and eva.lucmon expensed . -, - - Y -
Net impairment 1055 on 011 and gus assets . L -, - Y -
A.bandonment provision ) ) - 236 - - 236,
Total non-cash expenses o 11,598 1,695 - M 13,347
‘Result after tax _ ] 3 9,516 4276 (369) {1.704) 1.9
Assots A . 7 : : + 7 + _ _: ) :
Segment assets o + 58,251 . 17.945 28722 18,687 1238051
Unulloccted corperate assets 7 + - - - - o,
.('.'_c_u_l_sollc_lc:te_d total assets o 58,251, 17,945 28,722 18,687, 123.605
' ] i !
[Lmh:lmos . i ' i ' f I

+ + + - 1 -

lSegment hak:uhnes ] _ 20,_180;; 2,284+ 1_3.610; ] A473'+ 36,528
Unulloccted corporc[te hubllmes o - -! - - -
r?:gmucggted total liabilities | 20,180, 2.264; 13610 473 36.528




23. Financial Reporting by Segments {cont’)

‘ | INDONESIA ~ PNG , Nz | AUSTRALIA, TOTAL

2007 $000s | $000s | $000% ,  $000's ; $000%s
lﬁgogmphic segments I *Lh”ﬁ I u! T

Revenue _ L ) o _I_ B ]

Revenue from Australion customers = |~ - _ - B _-rL 1912 1812
| Revenue from intemational customers - 7.757 -1 - 7757
| Total revenue ] - 7,757 -l 1912 9669
| | ]

e e - T
| Results I S o
|Segmentresults Cessyl a2’ - @08 (26099
 Unallocated carporate expenses - - i - - -
| Earnings bejore interest and tax | | i | i
| ("EBIT") | (28,983) 4972 -l (2,088) | (26,099) |

T T T T - D 1 | 1 ‘
S e '*L‘“ —_— __._,L._.. s
LPmﬁh’ﬂou} before tax v{} 1 L o +_ B ”‘r o

Income 2 tax expense ) o - (l 524)| - - (1, 524)|
‘ Net proiit/(lou} for the | period ) | (28,383) 3,448 - (2,088) | (27,623)"

| | !

Non-cuahaxpenses _____ o _ I [ _7__4 ]
EDeprec:lctlon and depletion _—j_— _ I 5{14 ) '-J'( ] 37, . Lol
"Unallocated corporate depreciation and | ! !

depletion | - - - - -
Ml Ao T ' } l

Totc] depremutlon and depletien . - ! '—5(—]4+ -l 37 1,541

Explcmtlon and evcluahon expensed __1'L__ S F - - i -

Net t impairment loss on oil and gas assets | + i - o -_J.'r ~ - i— ] - ! ) -

Abqndonment nt provision | - 207, - -T 207
"l'otu.l non-cash expenses : - 1,711 - 37) 1,748 |
lﬁlt aftertax : (28,983) 3448 -} {2.088}| (27,623}

T T i 1 i
- e L S I
.Assets L i o ! i o l . o 3 {

Segmeni assats o Lo ﬂza} 10,933 ' 16,205 % i 7}0_,?63_1\ 78_,3?“-1_4

[ing_l!gccrted corporate ussets o - - - - -
| Consolidated total assets f 10,323 10,933 16,205 10.863 78,324

0 T T T ° I I [ I
Fm e m e e e - - ,}* - - 4 - -+ o - 1

i Liabilities _ . ok S |

Segmglt_hﬂlﬁgi R 4l 2023, 210 o 47_7][ 3_@21

Uncllocated corperate habthtles o - - -, - -

' Consolidated total liabilities _ ‘ 41 2.023; 210 an! 3,152

Business Segments

The consolidated entity operates in the one business segment of petroleum exploration, development and

production.



24. Share Based Payments

Directors and Employee Benefits — Share Based Payment Plans

Ownership based compensation payments for employees and executives of the group are made at the
discration of the Board.

Share Based Payments

The following reconciles the cutstanding options and share rights granted as remuneration at the beginning and
end of the year.

2008 2008
Number of Share Rights Number of Options
{ordinary shares) {over ordinary shares)
' Balance at beginning of the Year } . 5,350,000
| Darance at beginiing ol e 1ea . b =
r(}ru_nied_diqngt}_leYear | 625006, 1,000,000
 Forteited during the Year . f 1250000
 Expired during the Year o - (1,000,000)
Issued Shares during the Year }_m ] R . -
. Balance ot end of the Year 625,000 4,100,000

Weighted average remaining contractual life of share rights is 1.25 years. Range of exercise prices for options as
share rights is disclosed in the Remuneration Report,

2007 2007
I Number of Share Rights Number of Options
. (ordinary shares) [over ordinary shares) -
' Balance at beginning of the Year 5 _ 2000000
.Granted during the Year i -1 4350000
' Lapsed/forfeited during the Year ; _jr i (1 i]gﬂ_,OQU)*
E_‘.xplred during the Year 1 -J; -,
,Issued Shares during the Year ! ot S
| Balance at end of the Year | -T 5,350,000 §
Range of exercise prices for options as share rights is disclosed in the Remuneration Report.
Share Based Payments Granted ~ Share Entitlements and Options over Ordinary Shares
Number of Share Rights
Granted .
(ordinary shares) Number of Options Granted
. Expiring 1 Jan 2010 (over ordinary shares)
2008 Grant Dates
16 April 2008 ' 625,000 1,000,000
) 625,000 1.000.000
2007 Grant Dates
23 April 2007 ] - 4,350,000,
- 4,350,000




24. Share Based Payments (cont’)
Key Assumptions used in Determining Value of Employee Entitlement Shares During the Year

. Options issued to 1
Assumptions used i Ordinary Shares Right{i) Executives(ii) j
ﬁar@ Price—grantdate o L _ 255cents l  255cents o J
Nolalty of Share Price__ ; NA % }
BevcsePrico 7 S = S
Dateofmaturty  ___ o, ommo o amslo
Ifils’k Free Rate of Interest L i , 6% o J'[ _6.11% , l
Bxpected Dividend Yied | oz . y
Vesting Date . __ . oumno o Immediate ]
Valuation j $17,893 j $100,000

Total expense for share based payments recognized during the financiat year ended 30 June 2008 $117,893 (2007
$322,182).

{i)Shares Rights Granted — Execulives and Employees

During the year and up to the date of this report, rights to 625,000 ordinary shares were granted to executives
and employees. The shares have not been issued and will not vest until 01/01/10 based on the respective
executives and employees continued tenure of employment.

The shares are measured based on their fair value at grant date (16 April 2008). This fair value is based on the
market price. The vesting conditions are not taken into account when estimating the fair value of the shares

but will be taken inte account by adjusting the number of shares expected to vest. Assuming all employees are
expected to remain employed uniil 1 January 2010 and therefore all shares are expected to vest, the fair value of
the shares is recognised over the period from grant date to vesting date, i.e: 16 April 2008 to 1 January 2010,

(ii]Options over ordinary shares - Executives

During the year and up to the date of this report, 1,000,000 options over ordinary shares were granted to
executives. The options have a grant date of 16 April 2008, being the date of the board meeting at which they
wore approved. The options vested immediately upon granting. No other terms of the options have been
provided and as such we have assumed the options vest immediately, entitle the holder to one share for every
option on expiry and have no other restrictions on them.



25. Key Management Perscnnel and Related Party Disclosures

Eey Management Personnel
The following were Directors of Cue Energy Resources Limited during the financial ysar:

Chairman
R.G. Tweedie (Non-Executive}

Non-Executive Directors

E.G. Albers

L. Musca

L. Taylor (resigned 6 August 2007)

Key Management Personnel

Executives {other than Directors with the authority for strategic direction and management).

Name Position

R.J. Coppin Chief Executive Officer

AM. Knox Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Remuneration

Compensation of Key Management Personnel — 2008;

2008 Short-Term _ Post Employment Share-Based
‘ ' ' ; { Total i
Cesh Non " Perfor |
sclary and Cash monetary Super  Rotirement Shere Optiona/ mmece
foos Bonus bonefits** annuation  benefits Purchases®  Shares ‘ Related Total
Name $ ! $ $ ; H $ \ s . $ \ % $
: Non— ] ' ' 1 1 1
\ Executive '
Directora : , . |
— - + - - + - -y -t - + - + - + t + -
RG. Tweedie , . " " . o B 4 -, 83
EG. Albers 29,167 - - - . 29,167 - ; 58,334
' ——— - + -+ + + — -+ -+ - -+ - (R
LMusca  :  29167] ] 4 . L 29187, g 1 s83m,
* Total fosaan! - . - 116668 -1 T175002)
| i ' i : - d
+ + + -+ + # + . + -+ .
{Executives | L L, b1 ! 4 i
RI.Coppin 21804l _ . A0S 87600, ., WG W 40090
AM.Enox . 217776 - 82,717 22,860 - 29,986 56,726 . 233 390,065
1 Total | 433817 -t 103.250 110460 - 29,986 113452 -l 780965
Total ! . ' ' ‘ i -
‘ remuneration , . \
 of Execulives | ; | ! ! ‘
"and Directors | 492,151 ! - 103.250 110,460 | -1 146854 113452, - 965967

* Shares purchased on market as an alternative to cash salary.

** Non performmance based salary sacrifice benefits, including motor vehicle expenses.



25. Key Management Personnel and Related Party Disclosures (cont’)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel — 2007:

2007 Short-Term Post Employment Share-Based :
i ' | Total }
i Cash Non ! , Peror !
. salary and | Cash ' monetary : Super | Retirement | Shere | Optiona/ | mamce I
foes . Bonus benefits™ ' cnnuation - benefits ' Purchases®! Shares | Related Totad |
Name H I H H , $ $ s . s % $ .
Tew | | | i | | l |
_Executive | l ‘ | i E
Diectors _ | 1 __ B e I S
RG. T‘weediei 6,250 t - - - ‘t 43,750 - - T 50,000
— . - . . — R ff—— . - - - T i - _J‘.. I . T -
{EG. Albers | 25,000 - - . - 25,000 - - 50‘009J
—— = -+ - —— % -—t- ———t -+ - - 4 —— - — -+ -
'K. Hoolihan 21,909 - - - - 21,895 - - 43804,
—_—— — - ——— ¢ -—-=- - — -4 -- -4 iy + - — -+ —
L. Musca 25,000 - - - - 25,000 - - 50,000 |
[ Total 78,159 | - -l - - 115,645 -] -] 193804
{ ] | |
'g- - % - l -— o+ -+ «l - - + .- H - -I
Executives ' i ' '
—_— 4 R - -+ -4 - -+ -+ + £ o= -+ -
RiCoppm 250000 - S04 @S0 .- B 81 @7
- AM. Knox 225299, - 42,173 23,760 - 19,9791 83667 | 212 394,878
! Total | 440,209 | -1 83077 111,380 | - 19979 167.334) S| 832,049,
Total | | ! ' i i '
remuneration | : E
" of Executives . ! | !
, and Directors | 518,458, -, 93077, 111,360 ! - 135,624, 167,334, - 1,025,853

* Shares purchased on market as an alternative to cash salary.

** Non performance based salary sacrifice benefits, including motor vehicle expenses.

Refer to the Remuneration Report section of the Directors’ Report for details on remuneration disclosures.

Options holdings

The number of opticns of ardinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director

of Cue Energy Resources Limited and each of the Executive Key Management Personnel including their

personally related entities are set out below:

Granted during Vested and
Balance at yoor as v Exercised Expired Bolance ot end exercisable
Ncme atart of year remuneraticn during year during year | of ymor at end of year
Directors i ' '

—_—— - r- + + + -
RG.Tweedie - . - - .
e = = + R + -+ -+ - + 4
'E.G. Albers - - . -, - 2

[— - - +
| K. Hoolihan 1 _t -T T t - -
L - J( -+ + + 4 + 1
' L. Musca i T i - -, - -
[Executives - , : .
RJ. Coppin 1.&)0.05[_)+ 5_0(_).00'ZIIJr - 500900 1,500.000 l,lE_SB,BB_? .
- AM. Knox 1,000,000 0,000, - 500,000 , 1,500,000 1,166,667
" Detalls of Options '
Price of Risk Free
No. of Exercise Share at Expiry Dividend Estimated Interest
Options Price Grant Date  Gront Dete Date Veating Tield Volatility Rate%  Value$
L0000 Socems  ZOWY Scenis  OMOGS, mmediwe 0 @7 6 1000
| SO5668 Mcens  290407) ISScenis 190412 immediate o, &, 7, %y
‘ 666,666 22.5 cents . 23/04/07  155cents . 19/04/ 12__; 18/04/08 g 67 N 7 * 55,334
- it it > e . SEVE Pl . d . SR
666666 . 25cents 230407 155cents, 1904/12' 1940409, 0 67 7 53,334
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25. Key Management Personnel and Related Party Disclosures (cont’)

Options issued have been valued using the Black Scholes method and are not based on Company performance,
but industry practice.

Estimated volatility is based on share price over the preceding 12 months. There are no further conditions
attached to the options.

' Bequiredduring ~ Purchases Purchases as

Balance at your on exercise other than Puaxt of Directors Sales during Balanceat
Shareholdings end of year of options remuneration Sarings Plan® the year © HReportDate |
Directors 2008 _ o R N T B
R.G. Tweedie 2,579,877 o -l - 77,095 | R k2
\EG Albers | - 8o®7) - o 2 W - BO074M
L. Mugea i 12,516,897 J[ - 38,547 - 12,555,444
Diectos20? | | L L] I
R.G. Tweedie 2,243,361 - - 336,516 - - 2,579,877 .
P -t - T+ - -+ — - e —a——— _——t
G- Albers 8.921.658 . 7y __tooagoo; 11828 St 80ssaT
, L. Musca 12,308,971 - - 200,926 ! - 12,516,897
|Executives2008 | | + __;
; i T T T i
R.]_.Coppm _ ; 15000 f o :+____ ] R N ]7.5(!)10(4)_4
AM. Knox | 1,740,504 - - 88,727 -, 1,829,231
Executives 2007 ' ' ‘ ‘
——— — — - -t — 4 - b + - . - -I
(R].Coppin 1500000, 1 oL o oo 1o
| AM. Knox | !,593.833T - - 146,671 - 1,740,504 |

* Share purchases made on behalf of Directors after year end as part of their remuneration for the year
ended 30 June 2008.

Related party transactions and balances
Members of the Board of Directors

The Directors in office during the year were L. Musca, R.G. Tweedie, E.G. Albers and L. Taylor {resigned 6 August
2007). During the year Directors’ fees for the parent company of $188,254 were paid (2007: $193,804). Included in
this amount are cash payments of $13,255 on behalf of one Director, R.G. Tweedie, to Todd Petroleum Mining
Company Limited, of which the Director is associated, $29,167 (2007: $25,000} to Leon Nominees Pty Ltd of which
one Director is associated and $29,167 to 500 Custodian Pty Ltd of which one Directer is associated.

The Company is in joint ventures with Exoil Limited and Gascorp Australia Lid, companies associated with a
Director, E.G. Albers, in three Australian exploration permits respectively.

The permits with Exoil Limited are T/37P, T/38P and WA-359-P and with Gascorp Australia Ltd, WA-360-P, WA-
361-P and WA-409-P. All permits are held on « 50:50 basis. Cue is the cperator of all the permits. Refer Note 19 for
further details. Management fees received on these licences were $170.685 (2007: $122,943).

The Company has entered into a farmin arrangement with Todd Exploration Limited, a company associated
with the Director, R.G. Tweedie, to earn a 20% interest in PEP384%4 in the Taranaki Basin, New Zealand. Cue will
earn its interest in the block by funding 30% of the costs of drilling the Matariki -1 well. The farm in arrangements
are on commercial terms,

The joint venture arrangements dare on commercial terms.
Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiary companies are shown in Note 12. The realisable value of advances to subsidiaries and
amounts owed to subsidiaries are shown in Note 10. Allowance has been made by the parent company for
possible non-recovery of loans to subsidiaries of $51.363M (2007: $51.363M).

Repayment of amounts owing to the Company at 30 June 2008 and all future debts due to the Company, by
the subsidiaries are subordinated in favour of all other creditors. Cue Energy has agreed to provide sufficient
financial assistance to the subsidiaries as and when it is needed to enable the subsidiaries to continue operations.

The parent company has provided o finamcial guarcmtee for Cue Tarancki’s performance, as required by the Maari
FPSO lease and contract, cnd guaranteed performance under the project loan facility until construction completion.

The parent company provides management, administration and accounting services to the subsidiaries. A
management fee of $480,000 (2007: $480,000) and interes: of $409,658 (2007: $462,673) was charged respectively by
the parent company to Cue PNG Oil Company Pty Ltd. Further management fees of $NIL (2007: $131,000) were
charged by the parent to other subsidiaries.



26. Note to Cash Flow Statement

‘ Consclidated , Parent ,
2008 2007 2008 2007
~ $000's $000s . $000's $000s |
' (@) Reconcillation of operating profit / (loas) to net | E
-cashilows from operating activities: I L _ _ )
. Reported profit / (loss) aiter tax 11, 719 (27,623 (815) {29.824)
! Impact of changes in working co capxtal uerr_ls B t_____ o _‘:_d";: : o o ___ ) B
i : Decreasef(increase) in receivables ol M e ﬂ:
' lncrecsen’(decreuse) in payables | EE\L G A i 100
“efp_sn_ofﬂ‘fcﬂ_wng cash flows e —— U
Depreciation L A, LA I . 2 3
] Amortlsatlon L ~ I 113,057+ 1504 (480) -_-1
Mamgefl‘i'l*fie _ . T, I E U N
&ﬁsebesidwmems ] 128, a2z 128, 2,
qunceiFee N | - Lﬂ ) "-‘i
rNet loss (gain) on {orelgn currency conversion | 1,045; 781 LM46 _ 781
,Abandenment charge S ) A ’
(Prcht) on sale of investments -, sy - _ _(7_5_911
Wnte e down/{up) value of exp]orcmon expendnure . 28983 s -
Wnte down/lup) value of investments - - - 28,983
Net cash flows from operating activities | 23215 2,710 (309), 43|
{b) Caah comprises cash balances held within i:h '
Ags_tr_c‘h_a and overseas: R . e , -,
i Austnlhg B 14,761 9,104 ¢ 14,761 9,104,
Cash flow statement cash balance | 14,761 9,104 14,761 9,104




Independent
Audlt Report

PKF

Chartered Accouniants
& Business Advisers

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Cue Energy Resources Limiled, which
comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008, and the income statement, statement of changes in
equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaratien for both Cue Energy Resources
Limlted and the consolidated entity comprising Cua Energy Resources Limited and the entities it
controlied at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financlal Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
that is free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and meking accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. In Note 1(b), the directors alsc state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB
101 Prasentation of Financial Stataments that compiiance with Australian Equivalents to Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements
and notes, complies with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards,

Auditor's Responslbility

Qur rasponsibility is 1o express an opinion on the financial report based on our sudit. YWe conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatemant.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financlal report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report whether dus to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relavant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in arder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effactiveness of the entity’s internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Wa balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence reguirements of the Corporations
Act 2001,

Tel: 84 30603 1700 | Fax: 61 3 0802 2870 | www pki.com.au

PKF | ABN 63 236 905 726

Level 14, 140 Wiltiam Strest | Meiboune | Victoria 3000 | Australs
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Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion:

{a) the financial report of Cue Energy Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporalions
Act 2001, including:.

(i) giving a trua and fair view of the entity’s and consolidated entity's financial position as
at 30 June 2008 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i} complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001, and

{b) the consolidated and parent financial reports also comply with international Financial
Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(b).

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 24 to 28 of the directors' report for the
year ended 30 Jfune 2008. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Cue Energy Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June
2008, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001,

o Dl

PKF D J Garvey
Chartered Accountants Partner

30 September 2008

Melbourna




Shareholder

Information

1) Spread of Shareholdings

Spread of Holdings of quoted shares of no par value
in the Company as at 10th of Cctober 2008.

'Number Held Ordinary
111,000 159
SRR ——t - - =
1,001 - 5,000 ‘ 884
_— -+ SR
5,001 - 10,000 .. 88
,10.001 - 100.000 L Lol 239
_Over 100,000 ; 459
! Total i 4739’
2) Unmarketable Parcels

The numbser of shareholders holding less than a
marketable parcel as at 10th of Octeber 2008 is 472.

3) Substantial Shareholders

The names and heldings of substantial sharsholders
in the Company as at 10th of October 2008:

i Quoted Sharos |
: Fully Paid |
| Todd Petroleum Mining Company '
Limited ., . lBS84z
,UOBKay Hion Private Limited 92766805,
Octanex NL , 36,380,140

4} Voting Rights
At meeting of members or classes of members:

{a)} each member antitled to vote may vote in person
or by proxy, atterney or representative;

{b) on a show of hands, every person present who is
a member or a proxy, attorney or representative
of a member has one vote; and

{c) on a poll, every person present who is a member
or a proxy, attorney or represeniative of o mem-
ber has:

(i) for each fully paid share held by person, or
in respect of which he is appeinted a proxy,
attorney or representative, one vote for the
share;

{ii} for each partly paid share, only the fraction of
one vote which the amount paid (not cred-
ited) on the share bears to the total amounts
paid and payable on the share (excluding
amounts credited),

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any
shares or class or classes of shares.

5) Registered Top 20 Shareholders

The registered names and holdings of the 20 largest
holdings of quoted ordinary shares in the Company
as at 10th of October 2008.



6) Holders
The number of holders of each class of equity securities as at 10th of October 2008 was:-
I Shareholder i Ordinary Shares,  Percentage Held !
I ToddPetroleum Mining Company Limited | 135919429 2163%
'2 _ ,UOBKayHion Private Limited . 92766805 1477%
L\’i TOctcmex NL o I gﬁilgmk 3 5.79%_1
4 iTodd Tasrncm Oll Ltd 7 B o ) _ 21,600,000 3_41.4%4I
L§ | ANZ Nominees Lum:eg S o 15,998,359_%" o 2‘5%
}s_ | CIMB-GK Securities Pt Ltd a ) 14956471 T 2.38%)
17 1BerneNo 132 Nominees Pty Lid B 13368397 2.13%
8 |PortfolioSecurities Pty Ld D o) \71%,
’9_ 1[Ernest Geoffrey Albers o _ f 10,083,647; i 1.61% i
1o Custodxal Services Limited - + 8,708,265 1.39%,
B HSBC Custody Nominees ) . 7587491 0.53%.
:r 12 MrColin MacEwan & Ms Bronwyn Beder ' i 7,475,000 ];193"31
"3 ! Cmeorp Nominees Pty Limited ] | 6380810 ]_02%1'
14 lIP Morgan Nominees Australia E,_”}ltefi, i 5419598 0.86% |
5 *Ncmonal Nominees Limited o 3691,714 0:59%'
l 16 Tmitg_cirilpcny of Australialid o : 3,230,000 ! 0.51%31:
7 _SCFIPy Ltd . 2800000 045%
18  Mr Neil Clifford Abbott & Gellert Ivanson Trustee Lid : 2,300,000, 037%
19 Reviresco Nominges Pry Lid + 2250000, 036%
20 , Mr Richard Tweedia ‘ 2,163,704, 0.36%
 Class of Security |
! ) Number |
' Ordinary Fully Paid Shares ! 4739,
: Unlisted Options | 5
7} Vendor Securities
There are no restricted securities on issue as at 10th of October 2008,
8) Unquoted Securities
20 largest holders of Unlisted Options as at 10th of October 2008.
Number of : i
Unlisted Number of
Options/Shares % Held of Total Unlisted % Held of Total Total Number
Held  01/06/10 Issued Options Held  19/04/12 lasued of Unlisted % Held of Total
Expiring Unlisted Expiring Unlisted Options/Sheres  Issued Unlisted
Name 01/06/10 Cptiona/Shares 1804112 Opticns Huld Optlons/Shares
RJ. Coppin 500,000 50, 1000000 % 1500000 7
,AM. Knox 500, OUD I 1,000,000 N 2, 1,500, 000 37,
D.leech - . 509000, 6 S00. 000 12,
JAdwondw 4 '7 __ . 300000! . E@PQQ 7,
P Moffatt | 1 k 300,000 | ol 300,000 7
E ‘ 1.000.000 ' 10} 3,100,000 | 100 4,100,000, 100
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L. Musca LLB
E.G. Albers LL.B
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CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
ABN 45 066 383 971

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
and

EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM

1
T [}
ao= 0
; " D=0
Date of Meeting 26" November 2008 ST = NA
PR N R
Time of Meeting  10.30am B
Lo m
Place of Meeting ~ Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd 1 R ©
Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street ‘oz S
Abbotsford
Melbourne VIC 3067
This Notice of Annual General Meeting and Expianatory Memorandum
should be read in their entirety. If shareholders are in doubt as to how
they should vote, they should seek advice from their accountant, solicitor
or other professional adviser prior to voting.
1
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CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Secretary

Cue Energy Resources Limited
Level 21

114 William Street

Melbourne, Victoria 3000
Australia

Fax No: (61) 3 9670 8661

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Cue Energy Resources Limited (the Company) will be held at 452 Johnston Street,
Abbotsford Vic 3067, Australia, on 26™ day of November 2008, commencing at 10.30am for
the purpose of transacting the following items of business.

The Explanatory Notes which forms part of this Notice of Annual General Meeting describes
certain matters to be considered at the annual general meeting.

AGENDA
Ordinary Business
Iitem 1 - Financial Report

To receive and consider the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 and the reports
of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, with or without
amendment, as ordinary resolutions of the Company:

ltem 2 - Resolution 1: Remuneration Report

“To adopt the Remuneraticn report for the Year ended 30 June 2008."
(Details of the resolution are contained in the Explanatory Notes)

Ifem 3 - Resolution 2: Re-election of Director Mr. E.G. Albers

In accordance with the Company's Constitution, Mr. E.G. Albers retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

(Details of the resolution are contained in the Explanatory Notes)
ltem 4 — General Business
To consider any other business as may be lawfully put forward in accordance with the

constitution of the Company.

2
\



Explanatory Notes

1.

The Company’s Annual Financial Report and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditor thereon

The Directors will table, for the consideration of members, the Company’s Annual Financial
Report and the reports of the Directors and Auditor thereon, for the year ended
30 June 2008.

Neither the Corporations Act nor the Constitution require a vote of members on the reports
or statements. However, shareholders will be given a reasonable opportunity to ask
questions about or make comments on the management of the Company.

Also, a reasonable opportunity will be given to members as a whole at the meeting to ask
the Company’s Auditor questions relevant to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the Auditor’s repon, the accounting policies adopted by the Company in relation
to the preparation of the financial statements and the independence of the Auditor in
relation to the conduct of the audit.

Ordinary Resolutions

Resolutions 1 and 2 are ordinary resolutions which, to be passed, require at least 50% of
the votes cast by members entitled to vote on the resolution to be voted in favour of
the resolution.

Resolution 1: Remuneration Report

"To adopt the remuneration report for the Year ended 30 June 2008."

Explanation

The Corporations Act 2001 requires listed companies to put to shareholders at the AGM a
non-binding resolution conceming the Remuneration Report which is contained in the
Directors’' Report section of the Annual Report.

This sets out details of the remuneration of each director and for each of the other key
management personnel of the Company, in addition to describing Board policy in respect
of remuneration, its relationship to the Company’s performance, along with a detailed
summary of any relevant perfformance conditions, why those particular conditions were
chosen, and how performance is measured against them,

Shareholders will be given an opportunity to ask questions conceming the Remuneration
Report at the AGM.

As stated, the resolution is non-binding.

Resolution 2: Re-election of Director

“............ retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.”
Explanation

The Constitution of the Company requires that at every annual general meeting,

one-third or the closest number to one-third of the Directors, shall retire by rotation from
office and provides that such Directors are eligible for re-election at the meeting.
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PROXY, REPRESENTATIVE AND VOTING ENTITLEMENT INSTRUCTIONS
PROXY AND BODY CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVE INSTRUCTIONS

On a poll, Members have one vote for every fully paid ordinary share held. On a show of hands, every
person present and qualified to vote has one vote and if one proxy has been appointed, that proxy will
have one vote on a show of hands. If a sharehcider appoints more than one proxy, and more than one
proxy attends the meeting, neither proxy may vote on a show of hands, but both proxies will be entitled
to vote on a pol.

Shareholders are entitied to appoint up to two individuals to act as proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf. Where more than one proxy is appointed each proxy may be appointed to represent a specific
proportion of the shareholder’s voting rights. If the appointment does not specify the proportion or
number of votes each proxy may exercise, each proxy may exercise half of the votes.

Shareholders who are a body corporate are able to appoint representatives to attend and vote at the
Meeting under Section 250D of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

The proxy form (and the power of attomey or other authority, if any, under which the proxy form is
signed) and certificates appointing body corporate representatives or a copy or facsimile which appears
on its face to be an authentic copy of the proxy fom (and the power of attomey or other authority) or
certificate appointing a body corporate representative must be deposited at, posted to, or sent by
facsimile transmission to the Company’s office, Level 21, 114 Wiliam Street, Melboume 3000 or
faxdt (61) (03) 96708661, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting, or adjoumed
meeting as the case may be, at which the individual named in the proxy form proposes to vote.

The proxy form must be signed by the shareholder or histher attomey duly authorized in writing or, if the
sharehoider is a corporation, in the manner permitted by the Corporations Act.

The proxy may, but need not, be a shareholder of the Company.

In the case of shares jointly held by two or more persons, all joint holders must sign the proxy form.

A proxy form is attached to this Notice.

VOTING ENTITLEMENT

For the purposes of determining voting entitements at the Meeting, shares will be taken to be held by
the persons who are registered as holding the shares at 7.00pm, 24" November 2008, Accordingly,
transactions registered after that time will be disregarded in determining entitements to attend and vote
at the Meeting.

By order of the Board

AM. Knox

Company Secretary

14 October 2008
Melbourme

2008 Annual Report

Shareholders who elected not to receive a printed copy of the 2008 Annual Report can
access the Annual Report at Cue’s website address:

hitp://iwww.cuenrg.com.au £ ND




